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2013 FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:
• Reported $25.2 million in net income in 2013.

• Reduced ongoing operating expenses by approximately $8 million.

• Increased book value per share from $10.30 at 12/31/12 to $10.75  

at 12/31/13.
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2013: THE YEAR IN REVIEW

2013 was a year of changes, progress and success for Ullico Inc. 

Over the past year, the organization has focused on becoming 

more efficient and positioning itself for profitability. Continuing 

to reduce operating expenses, increasing gross written premium 

in our life and health business unit and retaining the professional 

liability lines have improved Ullico’s financial strength and set 

the company for long-term, managed growth.

To position Ullico for a positive trajectory in 2014 and the future, major steps that have 
been taken during the last year include:

• Moving all Ullico property and casualty business to a “managing general agency” model.

• Partnering with international unions to offer endorsed medical stop loss programs.

• Separate Account J returning to debt financing in its first full year of new lending since the recession.

• Adding new projects within the Ullico Infrastructure Fund.
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LIFE & HEALTH

The Union Labor Life Insurance Company (Union Labor Life) continued 

consistent gross premium growth in its insurance lines, remaining true 

to the company’s core principles of conservative, careful underwriting 

and insuring the labor marketplace. The company had its highest rating 

in company history affirmed by A.M. Best in July. The ratings agency  

reassigned its rating of B++ (Good), stable outlook, noting the company’s 

focus on growth and established presence with organized labor.

Preparing unions for health care reform has been a key 

focus of the company over the last year. With the imple-

mentation of many key components of the Affordable  

Care Act (ACA) in 2014, Union Labor Life provided 

seminars, articles and information on how the law 

will affect union health care plans. In addition, the  

company engaged in strategic meetings with labor 

representatives regarding how their health care plans 

might be affected by the ACA and the role the company 

can play in providing solutions to these critical issues.  

Protection against large medical claims is a major  

concern for union health care plans as coverage limits  

are eliminated by the new law. Union Labor Life’s 

medical stop loss products were a central part of these 

discussions.

During 2013, Union Labor Life added three new medical  

stop loss programs that are endorsed, respectively, by 

the Laborers’ International Union of North America, 

the International Bricklayers and Allied Craftworkers, 

and the International Brotherhood of Electrical Work-

ers. These three programs are in addition to the medi-

cal stop loss program endorsed by the International  

Brotherhood of Teamsters, which was implemented in 

2012. 

Union Labor Life generated $15 million in new  

premium across all of its insurance lines in 2013. 

Sales of medical stop loss insurance for multi-employer 

health and welfare plans represented $11 million of 

this premium written. Overall premium for the line grew 

by 4 percent in the year. In addition, fourth quarter 

proposal activity for medical stop loss policies was at 

a record number, which is an indicator of potential 

growth for 2014. In the last seven years, the medical 

stop loss insurance line has grown from $35 million 

in annual premium to more than $85 million as of the 

end of 2013.

In addition, Union Labor Life’s supplemental life insur-

ance lines have showed steady sales growth with overall  

premium increasing by 5 percent over the previous year 

through direct mail to 11 international unions with more 

than 3 million total union members. The company’s  

group life insurance lines posted premium growth of 4 

percent over 2012. 
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“AS A UNION MEMBER IN THE UNITED STATES, ULLICO IS YOUR 

COMPANY. IT WAS FOUNDED BY YOU AND FOR YOU AND CONTINUES 

TO THIS DAY TO SERVE YOU AND YOUR FAMILY.”
SEAN MCGARVEY

PRESIDENT OF NORTH AMERICA’S  

BUILDING TRADES UNIONS
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PROPERTY & CASUALTY

In 2013, Ullico Casualty Group, Inc. (UCG) reported 

slight growth in its professional lines business and  

succeeded in retaining more than 90 percent of renewal 

premium in spite of many challenges and aggressive 

competition. UCG also generated $4.3 million in new 

premium from more than 300 fiduciary liability and 

union liability policies. 

Ullico’s property and casualty operations also successfully transitioned their focus to a 

“managing general agency” model where UCG underwrites and administers claims on 

behalf of A rated insurance carriers. Under this model, UCG established a partnership 

with Alterra America Insurance Company, a Markel company, for its professional lines 

and successfully provided quality coverage for fund trustees and union leaders across the 

country. UCG shares risk through the Ullico Labor Captive in this partnership and creates 

a more stable business model for the group.

In 2013, UCG also focused on improving service standards to our broker sales force with 

an enhanced training program for new underwriters. In addition, the group’s underwriting  

and claims expertise kept loss ratios low compared to the unit’s historical average. 

The transitions that have taken place over the last year have helped to position UCG for 

even greater success in 2014.



7S O L U T I O N S  F O R  T H E  U N I O N  W O R K P L A C E   |

“WITH THE BACKING OF ULLICO, WE CAN FACE THE BIG 

COMPANIES AND THOSE THAT WOULD TRY TO SLOW US DOWN 

OR HINDER OUR PROGRESS THROUGH LAWSUITS. ULLICO 

GIVES US THE PROTECTION TO MAKE SURE THAT WE CAN FIGHT 

AND GIVE WORKERS A VOICE ON THE JOB.”
KEITH LUDLUM

PRESIDENT, UFCW LOCAL 1208 

TAR HEEL, NC



“A PROJECT LIKE THE SOLAR PLANT IN FRESNO, CALIFORNIA 

MEANS THOUSANDS OF WORK HOURS FOR OUR MEN AND WOMEN. 

YOU’RE TALKING ABOUT THE MAKE OR BREAK FOR WHETHER A  

MEMBER’S GOING TO KEEP THEIR CAR OR HOME. WE’RE MAKING 

MONEY THOUGH OUR PENSION INVESTMENTS AND MEMBERS ARE 

BUILDING A SECURE RETIREMENT. IT’S BEEN A LIFESAVER.”
KEVIN L. COLE
BUSINESS MANAGER/FINANCIAL SECRETARY

IBEW LOCAL UNION 100

FRESNO, CA
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INVESTMENT SERVICES

Ullico’s investment services business unit offers products and services 

designed for institutional investors. The company’s investment products* 

are offered by The Union Labor Life Insurance Company and Ullico  

Investment Advisors, Inc. and sold through the Ullico Investment  

Company, Inc. (Member FINRA/SIPC). As of the end of 2013, investment 

services had third party assets under management of $3.3 billion.

Its flagship real estate debt products, Separate Account 

J (J for Jobs) and Separate Account W1 (The WorkAmerica 

Fund) are managed within Union Labor Life by the Real 

Estate Investment Group. For the 12 month period ending 

December 31, 2013, Separate Account J returned 2.8 

percent on a net of fees basis. The WorkAmerica Fund 

delivered even stronger returns generating a 3.6 percent 

net of fees return for 2013. Both funds compared very 

favorably to their benchmark, the Barclays Capital  

Aggregate Index, which posted a negative return of -2.0 

percent for the same calendar year. 

Since their inception, these two funds have provided 

more than $12.5 billion in loan financing, generat-

ing more than 250,000 full-time union construction 

jobs. In 2013, J for Jobs and The WorkAmerica Fund 

closed 17 loans for more than $450 million, including  

projects in St. Louis, Seattle, Milwaukee, San Francisco, 

Los Angeles and New York.

Responding to unmet investment needs for the nation’s 

infrastructure, the Ullico Infrastructure Fund, L.P. was 

established in 2010 to assist in the construction, main-

tenance and refurbishment of America’s infrastructure. 

The fund’s investment goal is to achieve attractive  

risk-adjusted returns with significant annual cash yield 

and relatively low volatility. Its first investments included 

a water and wastewater treatment facility and a wind 

energy plant. Ullico also announced a commitment to 

finance up to $50 million in new or operating solar 

energy projects through a partnership with Panasonic 

Eco Solutions North America (Panasonic) and Coronal 

Management, LLC (Coronal). 

The Ullico Diversified International Equity Fund, L.P. 

also performed well during 2013, returning 26.5 percent  

to investors on a net of fees basis while its benchmark, 

the MSCI EAFE Index, returned 22.8 percent for the 

same period. The Ullico International Small Cap Fund 

generated a return of 34.0 percent on a net of fees 

basis compared to 29.3 percent for its benchmark, 

the MSCI EAFE Small Cap Index. Established to give  

institutional investors an international equity investment 

option while remaining dedicated to the values of  

organized labor, the holdings of the funds are screened 

to make certain that no investments are made in  

companies headquartered in countries that have a  

record of human rights abuses. 

* Performance is not guaranted and past performance is not indicative of future results.  The investment return and principal value of an in-
vestment will fluctuate so that an investor’s units, when redeemed, may be worth more or less than their original cost.  Current performance 
may be lower or higher than the performance data quoted.  Performance disclosures are an integral part of this publication and are included 
on pages 64-76.
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SUPPORTING THE AMERICAN  
LABOR MOVEMENT

Founded and owned by organized labor, Ullico has made a commitment  

to give back to the labor movement and exert a positive influence on the 

communities in which we work and live. As such, Ullico has teamed up 

with various non-profit organizations and causes that share the same  

commitment that we do — to make the world a better place for working 

Americans.

ULLICO PROUDLY SUPPORTS MANY LABOR  
AND COMMUNITY ORGANIZATIONS INCLUDING:

Education
• OPCMIA Scholarship Foundation

• James R. Hoffa Memorial  

Scholarship Fund

• Arthur E. Coia Scholarship  

& Education Fund

• Carpenters Scholarship  

Foundation

• Connell F. Smith/Homer Brown 

Scholarship Fund

• Ryan Griffin Memorial  

Scholarship Foundation

• Institute for Labor Studies

• National Labor College

• R.E. Shepherd Scholarship Fund

• Illinois Labor History Society

• The American Labor Museum

• Sheet Metal Workers’ International 

Scholarship Foundation

Military Veterans
• Helmets to Hardhats

• Yellow Ribbon Foundation

Workers’ Rights
• Kentucky Jobs with Justice

• American Rights at Work

• Working America

• Employment Justice Center

• Interfaith Worker Justice

• New Jersey Alliance for Action

Community Organizations
• Teamsters National Black Caucus

• Alliance for Retired Americans

• Union Sportsmen’s Alliance

• UFCW Minority Coalition

• Faith & Politics Institute

• The Jewish Labor Committee

• The D.C. Friends of Ireland

• Instituto Laboral de la Raza

• Community Services Agency of 

the Metropolitan Washington 

Council, AFL-CIO

• Italian American Labor Council

• Teamster Center Services

• Friends of Labor
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“THE WHOLE PURPOSE OF TRADE UNIONISM IS FOR US TO STICK 

TOGETHER AND SUPPORT OUR OWN, SO I WOULD BE A STRONG AD-

VOCATE FOR NOT ONLY MY OWN UNION, BUT FOR EVERYBODY ELSE 

TO SUPPORT ULLICO.”
JAMES BOLAND

PRESIDENT, INTERNATIONAL UNION OF  

BRICKLAYERS & ALLIED CRAFTWORKERS (BAC) 

ULLICO BOARD OF DIRECTORS
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A LOOK AHEAD

As Labor’s Company, we share the challenges that unions face. 

Along with the labor movement, Ullico has accomplished 

many great things in the last year. In 2014, we are looking 

forward to providing solutions for organized labor and signatory 

employers, just as we have for more than 85 years.

One major focus of the company in the coming year is to grow assets under management 

in the investment services business unit. In addition to building on the successful return of  

J for Jobs, there are great opportunities in growing WorkAmerica Fund investments for  

non-pension assets. We also continue to grow infrastructure investments via the agreement 

with Panasonic and Coronal and are currently exploring additional opportunities.

Medical stop loss will continue to be important with the Affordable Care Act in its first year 

of implementation in 2014. In addition to medical stop loss offerings, Union Labor Life will 

be exploring other ways the company can play a role in providing a solution to Labor’s health 

care challenges and meeting the new requirements under health care reform. We are also 

concentrating on delivering more product offerings under Union Labor Life, responding to the 

needs of our customers and the changing landscape of the health care marketplace.

Ullico Casualty Group will continue its strategy of steady growth, careful underwriting and 

operational excellence in providing union liability and fiduciary liability to union leaders and 

trustees.

In addition, Ullico will continue to implement cost reduction initiatives that should further 

reduce operating expenses in the years to come.

With the strong backing from our dedicated Board of Directors and focused senior leadership 

team, we will expand our reach within the labor movement to find solutions to meet labor’s 

growing needs.

Edward M. Smith Joseph J. Hunt
President & Chief Executive Officer Chairman of the Board
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013

Management of Ullico Inc. and its subsidiaries (“the Company”) is responsible for establishing  

and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting. Internal control over financial  

reporting is a process designed under the supervision of the Company’s principal executive and 

financial officers and effected by the Company’s board of directors, management and other  

personnel to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and 

the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally  

accepted accounting principles. Internal control over financial reporting includes those policies 

and procedures that:

• Pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 

the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

• Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation  

of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 

that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with  

authorizations of management and directors of the company; and

• Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized  

acquisition, use or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on 

the financial statements. 

Management has evaluated the effectiveness of its internal control over financial reporting as 

of December 31, 2013, based on the control criteria established in a report entitled Internal 

Control-Integrated Framework, issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 

Treadway Commission. Based on such evaluation, management has concluded the Company’s 

internal control over financial reporting was effective as of December 31, 2013. 

The effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013 has 

been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the Company’s independent auditors, as stated 

in their report, which appears herein.
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MANAGEMENT’S REPORT ON DISCLOSURE CONTROLS  
AND PROCEDURES AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2013

The Company has established disclosure controls and procedures to ensure that material 

information relating to the Company, including its subsidiaries, is made known to the officers 

responsible for financial reporting, other members of senior management and to the board 

of directors. Based upon their evaluation of the effectiveness of the Company’s disclosure 

controls and procedures, the principal executive and financial officers have concluded that 

such disclosure controls and procedures are effective to ensure that the information required 

to be disclosed by the Company is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the 

appropriate time periods. 

The Company intends to review and evaluate the design and effectiveness of its disclosure 

controls and procedures on an ongoing basis. The Company intends to make all necessary 

improvements in controls and procedures and correct any deficiencies that may be discov-

ered in the future in order to ensure that senior management has timely access to all material 

financial and non-financial information concerning the Company’s business. While the pres-

ent design of the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures is effective to achieve these 

results, future events affecting the Company’s business may cause management to modify 

its disclosure controls and procedures.

Edward M. Smith David J. Barra
President & Chief Executive Officer Senior Vice President 
 Chief Financial Officer



PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, Two Commerce Square, Suite 1700, 2001 Market Street, Philadelphia, PA 19103-7042
T: (267) 330 3000, F: (267) 330 3300, www.pwc.com/us

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Ullico Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Ullico Inc. and its subsidiaries
(the “Company”), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,
and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income (loss), stockholders’
equity and cash flows for the years then ended. We also have audited the Company’s internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2013 based on criteria established in Internal Control -
Integrated Framework (1992) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO).

Management's Responsibility

The Company’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America, for maintaining internal control over financial reporting including the
design, implementation, and maintenance of controls relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of the consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
error or fraud, and for its assertion about the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting
included in the accompanying Management’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting as
of December 31, 2013.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements and an opinion on
the Company's internal control over financial reporting based on our audits. We conducted our audits
of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in
the United States of America and our audit of internal control over financial reporting in accordance
with attestation standards established by the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement and whether
effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects.

An audit of financial statements involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on
our judgment, including assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal
control relevant to the company’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit of
internal control over financial reporting involves obtaining an understanding of internal control over
financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audits also
included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that the audit evidence we obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinions.
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Definition and Inherent Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process effected by those charged with
governance, management, and other personnel, designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the preparation of reliable financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (i) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (ii) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles , and
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations
of management and those charged with governance; and (iii) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention, or timely detection and correction of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent, or detect
and correct misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are
subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material
respects, the financial position of Ullico Inc. and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2013 and 2012,
and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Also in our opinion, the
Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2013, based on criteria established in Internal Control - Integrated Framework (1992)
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1 and Note 14 to the consolidated financial statements, effective March 11, 2013,
the Company deconsolidated Ullico Casualty Company, a material subsidiary, from the consolidated
results of Ullico Inc. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
April 25, 2014
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Ullico Inc.  
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  

(in thousands)

December 31,   December 31,

2013    2012

 ASSETS 

 Fixed maturity and debt securities, at fair value (amortized cost of $270,999 and $591,416) $              282,159 $              638,994

 Investments in limited partnerships and limited liability corporations 7,558 6,564

 Mortgage loans, held for investment 21,401 21,721

   Total Investments $              311,118 $              667,279

 Cash and cash equivalents                    37,624                    48,518

 Accrued investment income                          2,842                          5,717

 Premiums, accounts and notes receivable (net of allowance of $136 and $4,047) 15,475 30,051

 Reinsurance recoverable 25,143 190,459

 Property and equipment 4,446 7,261

 Goodwill, net 3,205 3,205

 Deferred policy acquisition costs 26,531 28,600

 Current income tax recoverable                         1,411                                    -       

 Deferred income tax                           -                          -

 Other assets 8,043  11,594

 Separate account assets 2,463,764 2,530,389

 TOTAL ASSETS $           2,899,602                 $           3,523,073                 
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Ullico Inc.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS  

(in thousands, except share amounts)

  December 31,   December 31,

2013 2012

 LIABILITIES 

 Policy and claim reserves: 

   Life, accident and health and annuities $            177,921                        $            178,195                        

   Property and casualty 4,238 499,860

 Deposit-type annuity contracts 64,053 81,207

 Policyholder funds on deposit 4,272 3,667

 Policyholder dividends payable 1,559 2,073

 Unearned and advance premiums 10,212 42,643

   Total Policy Liabilities 262,255 807,645

 Accounts payable and other liabilities 41,103 48,820

 Reinsurance balances payable 8,154 11,138

 Accrued pension and other postretirement benefits 25,938 30,568

Current income tax payable                             - 237

 Separate account liabilities 2,463,764 2,530,389

TOTAL LIABILITIES $         2,801,214                 $         3,428,797                 

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

 Capital stock ($25 par value; 2,000,000 shares authorized; issued and 6,284 6,284

   outstanding 251,351 at 12/31/13 and 12/31/12) 

 Class A common stock, voting ($1 par value; 12,000,000  shares authorized; 8,148 8,148

   issued and outstanding 8,148,483 at 12/31/13 and 12/31/12) 

 Class B common stock, nonvoting ($1 par value; 12,000,000 shares authorized; 753 753

   issued and outstanding 753,485 at 12/31/13 and 12/31/12) 

 Additional capital paid-in 190,524 190,524

 Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss):

   Unrealized investment gains, net of deferred tax                                                                                                          7,256                     30,926

   Pension liability adjustment, net of deferred tax                                 3,009      411

   Accumulated other comprehensive income/(loss)                       10,265                        31,337

 Retained earnings/(deficit)  (117,586)                      (142,770)                      

TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY  $              98,388                      $              94,276                     

TOTAL LIABILITIES and STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY $         2,899,602             $         3,523,073             
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Ullico Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 

OF OPERATIONS 
 (in thousands)

    Years Ended     

December 31,            December 31,

2013         2012

INCOME

 Premium income: 

   Life, accident and health and annuities $               132,985 $               154,492

   Property and casualty 9,535                                         -

 Fee based income 48,348 32,469

 Net investment income 12,593 14,642

 Net realized gains/(losses) 1,311                                  3,282

 Other income/(loss) 1,635 2,924

TOTAL INCOME      $               206,407      $               207,809

BENEFITS and EXPENSES

 Life, accident and health and annuities 104,451 112,854

 Interest credited to policyholder account balances 2,206 2,872

 Losses and loss adjustment expenses - property and casualty 4,306 -

 Policyholder dividends 1,591 2,105

   Total policy benefits and claims expenses 112,554 117,831

 Commissions                        22,209                        18,982

 Sales, general and administrative expenses 85,150 68,687

 Net change in deferred acquisition costs                        (1,887)                          (777)

 Taxes, licenses and fees 4,967 3,177

TOTAL BENEFITS and EXPENSES     $               222,993     $               207,900

Net income/(loss) from continuing operations before federal and state income taxes                        (16,586)                       (91)

 Income tax expense                          (3,684)                        (24,835)

Net income/(loss) from continuing operations                      (20,270)                   (24,926)

Discontinued Operations (Note 14)

Gain on deconsolidation of Ullico Casualty, net of tax                     34,746                                -

Income/(loss) from discontinued operations, net of tax                      10,708                        (133,770)

Net income/(loss) from discontinued operations 45,454 (133,770)

NET INCOME/(LOSS) $                 25,184     $              (158,696)
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Ullico Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF 

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)
(in thousands)

Years Ended

December 31, December 31,

   2013 2012

Net income/(loss) $         25,184    $       (158,696)    

Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax:

   Unrealized holding gains/(losses) arising during the period, net of $(5,769) and $4,235 of tax (10,712) 7,866

   Reclassification adjustment for unrealized gains on securities included in net loss, net of $(6,977) and $(3,088) of tax (12,958) (5,735)

   Change in unrealized gain on securities, net of $(12,746) and $1,147 in tax (23,670)  2,131  

   Change in pension liability, net of $1,399 and $24,413 in tax 2,598 45,578

Other comprehensive income/(loss), net of tax (21,072) 47,709

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) $          4,112  $   (110,987)  
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Ullico Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF 

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(in thousands)

Shares    Capital Stock
Class A  

Common Stock
Class B  

Common Stock

Balance, January 1, 2012                                     9,153  $              6,284  $              8,148  $                 753 

Balance, December 31, 2012                             9,153  $              6,284  $              8,148  $                 753 

Balance, December 31, 2013                             9,153  $              6,284  $              8,148  $                 753 

Additional  
Capital Paid-In

Cumulative Other  
Comprehensive 
Income/(Loss)

Retained  
Earnings/(Deficit)

Total

Balance, January 1, 2012 $       190,524 $      (16,372)  $         20,503      $    209,840   

Net loss        (158,696)           (158,696)

Change in unrealized gain on investments, net            2,131             2,131

Change in pension liability, net            45,578       45,578

Total comprehensive loss      (110,987)

Dividend to Capital stock shareholders (126)        (126)

Dividend to Class A common stock shareholders (4,074) (4,074)

Dividend to Class B common stock shareholders (377) (377)

Balance, December 31, 2012   $    190,524      $      31,337 $        (142,770)       $     94,276   

   Net income 25,184 25,184

   Change in unrealized gain on investments, net (23,670) (23,670)

   Change in pension liability, net 2,598 2,598

   Total comprehensive gain 4,112

   Balance, December 31, 2013   $       190,524 $      10,265 $      (117,586) $     98,388
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The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Ullico Inc.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS 

OF CASH FLOWS  
(in thousands)

Years Ended
December 31, December 31,

2013 2012
Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income/(loss) $                        25,184 $                     (158,696)
Net income/(loss) from discontinued operations 45,454 (133,770)
Net income/(loss) from continuing operations (20,270) (24,926)
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
  Interest credited to policyholder account balances 1,702 2,443
  Amortization of deferred policy acquisition costs 14,269 41
  Capitalization of deferred policy acquisition costs    (16,155)    (818)
  Amortization & depreciation expense 2,106 2,146
  Deferred income taxes     5,208     48,647
  Realized (gains)/losses on investments, net                             (1,311)                             (3,282)
 (Gains)/losses on limited partnership investments, net (118) (174)
  Change in premiums & other receivables                             (2,275)                                    315
  Change in reinsurance recoverable/payable 2,314                                 (5,973)
  Change in policy liabilities 13,485                               (20,748) 
  Change in accounts payable and other liabilities 6,002 (17,068)
  Change in current income tax recoverable/payable (2,450) (5,402)
  Other, net (2,251) 1,466
Cash provided by/(used in) operating activities – continuing operations 256 (23,333)
Cash used in operating activities – discontinued operations  (2,255) (15,025)
Cash used in operating activities (1,999)                           (38,358)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Proceeds from sales & maturities of investments:
  Fixed maturity and debt security sales                       58,806                       48,039
  Fixed maturity and debt security maturities                        34,445                                 40,941
  Mortgage loans                                 2,336                                 4,202
  Limited partnerships                            140                            671
Purchases of investments:
  Fixed maturities                     (50,670)                     (60,295)
  Mortgage loans                             (9,698)                              (9,349)
  Limited partnerships                               (1,016)                                  (3,984)    
Purchases of property & equipment                            (511)                            (274)
Cash provided by investing activities – continuing operations  33,832 19,951
Cash provided by/(used in) investing activities – discontinued operations  (24,331) 4,773
Cash provided by investing activities 9,501 24,724

Cash flows from financing activities:
  Investment product deposits 8,624 11,285
  Investment product withdrawals (27,020)   (14,724)
  Dividends paid to shareholders                                  - (4,577)
Cash used in financing activities – continuing operations                        (18,396)                        (8,016)

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period 48,518 70,168
Net change in cash (10,894) (21,650)
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period $                        37,624 $                         48,518
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Ullico Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Note 1---Organization and Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Ullico Inc., a privately held specialty insurance and investments holding 
company serving the union workplace, and its subsidiaries (collectively, “Ullico” or “the Company”).  Ullico’s primary wholly owned subsidiaries include 
The Union Labor Life Insurance Company (“Union Labor Life”), Ullico Casualty Group, Inc. (“UCG”), Ullico Investment Advisors, Inc. and Ullico Investment 
Company, Inc. See “Recent Results of Operations” below.

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP”).  All significant 
intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.  The preparation of financial statements requires management to make es-
timates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported amounts of revenues 
and expenses during the reporting period.  Actual amounts could differ from these estimates due to a number of factors, including changes in the level of 
mortality, morbidity, interest rates and asset valuations, and such differences could occur in the near term.  

Nature of Operations
Union Labor Life was founded in 1925 by the officials of the American Federation of Labor to provide low cost insurance protection to union members and 
their collectively bargained union benefit plans. Ullico Inc. was formed in 1987 to facilitate the restructuring of the insurance subsidiaries and to enable the 
Company to expand its investment services capabilities through non-insurance subsidiaries.  Ownership of Ullico’s stock is restricted to international and 
national trade unions, their members, their members’ benefit funds, the Company’s pension plan and directors and officers of the Company.

The activities of the Company cover a broad range of insurance and financial products and services provided principally to labor unions, their members and 
employers of union members, including life and health insurance, property and casualty insurance, investment advisory services, asset management and 
mortgage banking and servicing activities.  

Recent Results of Operations
Ullico Casualty Company (“Ullico Casualty”) was incorporated in May 1979, headquartered in Washington, D.C and domiciled in the state of Delaware.   Ul-
lico Casualty wrote insurance policies and reinsured policies in numerous states for Workers’ Compensation, Surety, Professional Liability, Commercial Auto, 
Commercial Multi-Peril and other lines of business.     

During 2012 and 2011, the Company generated significant losses, primarily from its property and casualty subsidiary, Ullico Casualty.  The losses arose 
primarily in non-core program businesses which have been terminated.  However, the products issued through these programs continued to generate losses 
through 2012. On March 11, 2013, the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware (the “Court”) issued a Rehabilitation and Injunction Order for the purpose 
of rehabilitating Ullico Casualty.  Subsequently, on May 16, 2013, the Receiver filed a petition for the entry of a Liquidation and Injunction Order. The Liquida-
tion and Injunction Order was entered by the Court on May 30, 2013. Ullico Casualty’s results through March 11, 2013 are included in the 2013 consolidated 
statement of operations of the Company as discontinued operations.  The assets and liabilities of Ullico Casualty have been deconsolidated effective March 
11, 2013 and are not included in the 2013 consolidated balance sheet of the Company.  The Company recognized an after-tax gain of $34.7 million in 2013 
due to the deconsolidation of Ullico Casualty.  

The Company no longer has control of Ullico Casualty and, as a result of the Rehabilitation and Injunction Order and the Liquidation and Injunction Order 
previously mentioned, is no longer involved in the operations or financial reporting of Ullico Casualty. Ullico Casualty is not a related party to the Company 
after deconsolidation.  See Note 14, “Discontinued Operations.”

The Company took numerous steps over the past eighteen months to change its property and casualty business model so that its core products that serve 
the union marketplace are marketed with a new carrier partner supported by the Company’s managing general agency subsidiary, Ullico Casualty Group.  The 
Company also exited non-core business programs in 2012 before the aforementioned orders were issued.  The orders do not affect Ullico Casualty Group’s 
business model for future operations.  

The property and casualty continuing lines amounts in the 2013 consolidated statement of operations represent the results of UCG and Ullico Labor Captive, 
IC (“Labor Captive”), a wholly owned subsidiary of Union Labor Life. In 2013, UCG completed the implementation of its managing general agency model and 
established a partnership with Alterra America Insurance Company (“Alterra”), a Markel company, to provide quality professional liability coverage for fund 
trustees and union leaders across the country. Labor Captive assumes a risk share in this partnership.
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Ullico Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Note 2---Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Invested Assets
Fixed maturity debt securities are designated “available for sale” and are reported at fair value.  The fair value of fixed maturity securities is based upon 
independent market quotations.  Other than securities that are other than temporarily impaired, changes in fair value of securities designated as available 
for sale, net of deferred income taxes, are recorded as a separate component of stockholders’ equity, and accordingly have no effect on net income.  Cash 
received from maturities and pay downs is reflected as a component of proceeds from sales and maturities of investments in the statements of cash flows.

Limited partnership investments and limited liability corporations are recorded in accordance with the equity method of accounting.  

Mortgage loans are carried at unpaid principal balances, less impairment reserves.  For mortgage loans considered impaired, a specific reserve is estab-
lished.  Mortgage loans are considered impaired when it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect amounts due according to the contractual 
terms of the loan agreement.  When a mortgage loan has been determined to be impaired, a reserve is established for the difference between the unpaid 
principal of the mortgage loan and its fair value.  Fair value is based on the lower of either the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at 
the mortgage loan’s effective interest rate or the fair value of the underlying collateral.  Changes in the mortgage valuation reserves are reflected in realized 
gains or losses.  

Cash equivalents include money market funds and other investments whose maturities at the time of acquisition were ninety days or less and are readily 
convertible to known amounts of cash. These investments are carried at cost, which approximates fair value.

Declines in the fair value of invested assets below cost are evaluated for other-than-temporary impairment losses. The portfolio of investments is reviewed 
on a quarterly basis to determine if an other-than-temporary decline in value has occurred.  The decision to impair a security incorporates both quantitative 
criteria and qualitative information.  A number of items factor into the “impairment” decision including, but not limited to:  (a) materiality and length of 
unrealized loss; (b) the financial condition of the issuer; (c) the business plan and trend of the issuer; (d) general market conditions and industry or sector 
specific factors; (e) interest rate environment and (f) whether the Company intends to sell or thinks it is more likely than not it will be required to sell the 
security prior to recovery.  

If the fair value of a fixed maturity security declines in value below the Company’s amortized cost and the Company intends to sell or determines that it will 
more likely than not be required to sell the security before recovery of its amortized cost basis, management considers the security to be other than temporar-
ily impaired and reports its decline in fair value as a realized investment loss in the consolidated statement of operations as the difference between carrying 
value and fair value.  If, however, the Company does not intend to sell the security and determines that it is not more likely than not that it will be required 
to do so, declines in the fair value are considered, in the judgment of management to be other than temporary are separated into the amounts representing 
credit losses and the amounts related to other factors.  Amounts representing credit losses are reported as realized investment losses in the consolidated 
statement of operations and amounts related to other factors are included as a component of accumulated other comprehensive income or loss, net of the 
related income tax benefit.  The amount of credit loss is determined by discounting the security’s expected cash flows at its effective interest rate at the time 
of acquisition.  Declines in the fair value of all other investments, with the exception of mortgage loans noted above, that are considered in the judgment of 
management to be other than temporary are reported as realized investment losses in the consolidated statement of operations.

Premium, Accounts and Notes Receivable
Premiums, accounts and notes receivable consist primarily of accrued premiums receivable from the Company’s insurance customers.  Premiums, accounts 
and notes receivable are carried at their estimated collectible amounts, net of any allowance for doubtful accounts, and are periodically evaluated for col-
lectability based on past payment history and current economic conditions.

Concentration and Credit Risk
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to concentration and credit risk are primarily cash and cash equivalents, investments and 
accounts receivable.  Investments are diversified through many industries and geographic regions through the use of investment managers who employ 
different investment strategies.  The Company limits the amount of credit exposure with any one financial institution and believes that no significant con-
centration of credit risk exists with respect to cash and investments.  The premiums receivable balances are generally diversified due to the distribution of 
policyholders across many states.  The Company also has receivables from reinsurers.  Reinsurance contracts do not relieve the Company from its obligations 
to its policyholders.   Failure of reinsurers to honor their obligations could result in losses to the Company.  The Company periodically evaluates the financial 
condition of its reinsurers and in certain cases, requires collateral from its reinsurer to minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolven-
cies.  Management’s policy is to review all outstanding receivable balances as well as bad debt write-offs experienced in the past and establish an allow-
ance for doubtful accounts, if deemed necessary.  See Note 9, Reinsurance, for additional details on concentration and credit risk related to the Company’s 
reinsurance programs.
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Ullico Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Policy and Claim Reserves and Policyholder Contract Deposits
Life and health insurance products consist principally of group insurance policies.  Most of the Company’s group life and health insurance policies are 
participating.  Therefore, in addition to guaranteed benefits, they pay dividends, as declared annually by the Company based on its experience.  The group 
life and health insurance claim reserves are based on projections of historical claim development.  The policy reserves, as related to life and health products, 
are based on assumptions for mortality and morbidity, utilizing interest rates ranging from 2.25% to 6.0%. 

Investment-type annuity products consist of single premium annuity contracts.  Annuity reserves consist principally of liabilities for group pension funds that 
are deposited on behalf of groups to provide immediate and future retirement benefits to group members.

Policy reserves and policyholder contract deposits on annuity and universal life insurance products are determined following the retrospective deposit 
method and consist of policy account values that accrue to the benefit of the policyholder, based on guaranteed rates stated in the policy contract, before 
deduction of surrender charges.

The reserves for losses and loss adjustment expenses for property and casualty insurance policies include estimates for losses and claims reported prior 
to the balance sheet date, estimates of claims incurred but not reported based on projections of historical loss developments with consideration given to 
the risk share arrangements with agents and underwriters that are expected to result in losses that trend below general industry results, and estimates 
of expenses for investigating, defending and adjusting all incurred and unadjusted claims. Actual amounts could differ from these estimates if these as-
sumptions do not occur as expected. Reserves are continually monitored and reviewed, and any adjustments are reflected in the current period consolidated 
statement of operations.

Fee Based Income
Fee based income consists primarily of revenue generated from administrative services, investment management fees charged to Separate Accounts and 
third parties and managing general agency fees.  Investment management fees were approximately $24.7 million and $29.5 million for the periods ended 
December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. Managing general agency fees were $21.1 million for the period ended December 31, 2013.  These fees are the 
result of income generated from a new agreement by the Company within UCG that serves as program administrator for fiduciary and union liability products 
for Alterra. Under this agreement, UCG is compensated for program administrator commissions, program agents’ commissions, claims handling fees and 
underwriting fees. These fees did not exist in the prior year.  In addition, marketing fees were approximately $2.5 million and $3.0 million for the periods 
ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.  

Premiums, Charges and Benefits
Premiums for life and accident and health policies are generally recognized when due.  Premiums for property and casualty are earned over the contract 
term.  Benefit claims (including an estimated provision for claims incurred but not reported), benefit reserve changes, and expenses (except deferred policy 
acquisition costs) are charged to income as incurred.  

Deposits for certain investment-type annuity and universal life insurance contracts are treated as liabilities rather than as premiums.  Revenues for 
investment-type products consist of policy charges for the cost of insurance, policy initiation, administration and surrenders during the period.  Expenses 
include interest credited to policy account balances and benefit payments made in excess of policy account balances.  Credited interest rates ranged from 
1.75% to 6.5% in 2013 and 2012.

Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs (“DAC”)
The Company defers and amortizes costs incurred that vary with, and are primarily related to, the acquisition of new business. Such costs include com-
missions and costs of marketing the Company’s products. The DAC for supplemental insurance is amortized over the expected lifetime of the insurance 
contracts issued as a direct result of the advertising (typically 20-30 years).  DAC associated with property and casualty insurance is amortized to expense 
as premiums are earned.  For traditional life insurance products, DAC is amortized to income in proportion to the estimated premiums on such business.  For 
annuity products, DAC is amortized to expense in relation to estimated gross profits.  DAC is reviewed periodically for loss recognition and written down when 
necessary.  Anticipated investment income is considered when determining if a premium deficiency relating to short-duration contracts exists.

Investment Income
Investment income primarily consists of interest from fixed maturities securities and net investment income from limited partnership and limited liability 
corporation interests.  Interest is recognized on an accrual basis.  Income from limited partnership investments and limited liability corporations is recorded 
based on the equity method and earnings are included in investment income.  Realized gains and losses include gains and losses on investment disposi-
tions and write downs in value due to other-than-temporary declines in fair value.  Realized gains and losses on investment dispositions are determined on a 
specific identification basis.
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Ullico Inc.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Policyholder Dividends
As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, approximately 99% of the Company’s in-force life and health business was written on a participating basis.  Dividends 
are earned by the policyholders ratably over the policy year. Dividends are included in the accompanying financial statements as a liability and as a charge 
to operations in the period incurred. Dividends are paid on the anniversary date of the policy.

Reinsurance
The reinsurance recoverable amount reported includes amounts billed to reinsurers on paid policy life and accident and health benefits and claims and 
property and casualty losses, as well as estimates of amounts expected to be recovered from reinsurance on amounts that have not yet been paid. Reinsur-
ance recoverables on unpaid policy benefits and claims are estimated based upon assumptions consistent with those utilized in establishing reserves.  The 
Company reviews reinsurance recoverable for collectability and records write-downs if necessary.  Premiums, benefits and expenses are recorded net of 
experience refunds, reserve adjustments and amounts assumed from or ceded to reinsurers, including commission and expense allowances.  The reinsurance 
balances payable amount reported includes amounts billed from reinsurers for premiums ceded which were written by the Company.  

Separate Accounts
Union Labor Life maintains separate account assets and liabilities, representing net deposits and accumulated net investment earnings less fees, held 
primarily for the benefit of tax-qualified group pension contract holders, which are reported at fair value in the Company’s consolidated balance sheet.  The 
Company does not bear the investment risk.  The assets consist primarily of equity securities, publicly traded long-term bonds, construction and permanent 
mortgages, real estate equity, cash equivalents and short-term investments.  Investments income/(loss) from separate account investments do not impact 
the Company’s consolidated results. 

Income Taxes
Current federal income taxes are charged or credited to operations based upon amounts estimated to be payable or recoverable as a result of taxable opera-
tions.  Deferred income tax assets have been recorded for temporary differences between the reported amounts of assets and liabilities in the accompanying 
financial statements and those in the Company’s income tax returns.  A deferred tax asset valuation allowance is established if it is more likely than not that 
such an asset would not be realized.

Property and Equipment
Property and equipment are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation and amortization.  Included in property and equipment are capitalized costs 
related to computer software licenses and software developed for internal use.  Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated 
useful lives of the related assets.  Estimated useful lives of depreciated assets are as follows: personal computers (3 years); printers, servers, mainframe 
equipment, software and furniture and fixtures (5 years).  Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the estimated useful lives of the assets 
or the related lease term, ranging from 5 to 10 years.  Accumulated depreciation on property and equipment was $22.1 million and $28.6 million at Decem-
ber 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.  Depreciation expense was $2.2 million and $2.9 million for the periods ended December 31, 2013 and 
2012.  The Company reviews its property and equipment for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may 
not be recoverable. 



30   |  2 0 1 3  A N N U A L  R E P O R T

Ullico Inc.
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For the Years Ended December 31, 2013 and 2012

Goodwill 
Goodwill of $3.2 million as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 represents the excess of purchase price over fair value of the net assets of ac-
quired entities, net of $0.8 million of amortization recorded prior to 2002.  Management reviews the carrying value of goodwill to determine whether impair-
ment may exist.  This review is done annually unless events suggest that an impairment may have occurred in the interim. 

Contingent Liabilities
Amounts related to contingent liabilities are accrued if it is probable that a liability has been incurred and an amount is reasonably estimable.  

Reserves for Litigation
The Company is subject to lawsuits in the normal course of business related to its insurance and non-insurance products.  At the time when pending or 
threatened litigation becomes known, management evaluates the merits of the case and, if the potential settlements or judgments are determined to be 
probable and estimable, a reserve is established in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”), Accounting Standards Codification 
(“ASC”), 450-20, Contingencies, Loss Contingencies.  These reserves may be adjusted as the case develops.  Periodically, and at least quarterly, manage-
ment assesses all pending cases as a basis for evaluating reserve levels.  At that point, any necessary adjustments are made to applicable reserves as 
determined by management and are included in current operating results.  Reserves may be adjusted based upon outside counsels’ advice regarding the 
laws and facts of the case, any revisions in the law applicable to the case, the results of depositions and/or other forms of discovery, general developments 
as the case progresses such as a favorable or an adverse trial court ruling, whether a verdict is rendered for or against the Company, whether management 
believes an appeal will be successful, or other factors that may affect the anticipated outcome of the case.  Management believes adequate reserves have 
been established in known cases.  However, due to the uncertainty of future events, there can be no assurance that actual outcomes will not differ from the 
assessments made by management.     

Subsequent Events
The Company has evaluated subsequent events for recognition and disclosure through April 25, 2014, the date the audited consolidated financial state-
ments were available to be issued and has included the related disclosures in Note 15 of the consolidated financial statements.

Accounting Pronouncements

Fair Value Measurements
Effective January 1, 2012, the Company adopted updated guidance regarding the fair value measurements and disclosure requirements. The updated guid-
ance clarifies existing guidance related to the application of fair value measurement methods and requires expanded disclosures. The adoption of this guid-
ance did not have any effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations. The Company has included the required disclosures in 
the notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Multi-Employer Plan Disclosures
Effective July 1, 2012, due to the merger of the Company’s pension plan into the AFL-CIO Staff Retirement Plan, the Company adopted Accounting Standards 
Update 2011-09, which provides guidance on disclosures regarding an employer’s participation in a multi-employer pension plan. The adoption of this guid-
ance did not have any effect on the Company’s consolidated financial position or results of operations. The Company has included the required disclosures in 
Note 10 of the consolidated financial statements.

Presentation of Comprehensive Income 
Effective January 1, 2012, the Company early adopted, retrospectively, updated guidance regarding the presentation of comprehensive income. The updated 
guidance eliminates the option to present components of other comprehensive income as part of the statement of changes in stockholders’ equity. Under 
the updated guidance, an entity has the option to present the total of comprehensive income, the components of net income, and the components of other 
comprehensive income either in a single continuous statement of comprehensive income or in two separate but consecutive statements. The updated guid-
ance does not change the items that are reported in other comprehensive income or when an item of other comprehensive income must be reclassified to 
net income. The Company opted to present the total of comprehensive income, the components of net income, and the components of other comprehensive 
income in two separate but consecutive statements. 
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Note 3---Investment Securities 

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains, gross unrealized losses and fair value of investments as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 are as 
follows (in millions):

December 31, 2013

Amortized Cost
Gross Unrealized  

Gains
Gross Unrealized 

Losses
Fair Value

Debt securities issued by U.S Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

$          30.4 $            0.8 $                0.1 $            31.1

Debt securities issued by U.S. states and political subdivisions 
of states

61.6 3.9 1.1 64.4

Debt securities issued by foreign governments 0.5 0.1 - 0.6

Corporate debt securities 100.2 4.8 1.2 103.8 

Residential mortgage-backed securities 78.3 4.4 0.4 82.3 

     Total $         271.0 $          14.0 $             2.8 $          282.2

December 31, 2012

Amortized Cost
Gross Unrealized 

Gains
Gross Unrealized 

Losses
       Fair Value

Debt securities issued by U.S Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

$          112.1 $            5.0 $                0.1 $            117.0

Debt securities issued by U.S. states and political subdivisions 
of states

119.8 13.9 0.1 133.6

Debt securities issued by foreign governments 2.4 0.7 - 3.1

Corporate debt securities 195.2 17.9 0.1 213.0 

Residential mortgage-backed securities 161.9 10.6 0.2 172.3 

     Total $          591.4 $          48.1 $             0.5 $          639.0

The Company had $12.4 million and $116.9 million of securities on deposit with state regulatory authorities at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, 
respectively.

The Company had $15.3 million and $159.2 million of assets pledged or collateral held in trust to third parties at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 
2012, respectively.
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The amortized cost and estimated fair value of fixed maturity securities at December 31, 2013 by contractual maturity are shown below (in millions):

Amortized  
Cost

Fair Value

Due in one year or less $              3.8  $        3.8  

Due after one year through five years 74.5 77.9

Due after five years through ten years 84.5 87.2

Due after ten years 108.2 113.3

     Total $          271.0 $       282.2

Expected maturities may differ from contractual maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without prepayment 
penalties.  Mortgage-backed securities are included based on their final maturity.

Proceeds from the sale of fixed maturities were $187.0 million and $194.1 million for the periods ended December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Realized gains/(losses) on investments for the periods ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 are summarized as follows (in millions):

Realized Gains/(Losses)
December 31, 

2013
December 31, 

2012

Fixed maturities $             1.3 $               3.3

Equity securities - -

Limited partnerships - -

Realized gains/(losses) from continuing operations 1.3 3.3

Realized gains/(losses) from discontinued operations 12.1 8.4

     Total Realized Gains/(Losses) $           13.4       $             11.7

The Company’s investment portfolio includes $2.7 million of unrealized losses on seventy fixed maturity securities that have been in a continuous loss posi-
tion for less than twelve months.  The portfolio includes $0.1 million of unrealized losses on two fixed maturity securities that have been in a loss position for 
more than twelve months. The balance in the Company’s gross unrealized losses for available-for-sale securities for the period ended December 31, 2013, 
was attributable primarily to reduced liquidity in several market segments. Based upon the nature of the fixed maturity securities, the Company believes that 
each issuer will meet all of its financial obligations.  Based on the other factors described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and that the 
Company does not intend to sell the related debt securities and it is not likely that the Company will be required to sell the debt securities before recovery of 
their amortized cost bases, which may be maturity. Therefore, the Company does not consider the debt securities to be other-than-temporarily impaired as of 
December 31, 2013 and 2012.
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The following table shows the Company’s investments with gross unrealized losses and their fair value, aggregated by investment category and length of 
time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2013 (in millions).

Less than 12 months      12 months or more Total

Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses
Fair Value

Unrealized 
Losses

Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses

Debt securities issued by U.S Treasury and other 
U.S. government corporations and agencies

$              12.2 $          0.1 $              - $        - $         12.2 $            0.1

Debt securities issued by U.S. states and  
political subdivisions of states

16.4 1.1 -                   - 16.4 1.1

Corporate debt securities 31.3 1.1 2.0                   0.1 33.3 1.2

Residential mortgage-backed securities 11.8 0.4 -                    - 11.8 0.4

    Total $            71.7 $       2.7   $          2.0 $      0.1 $        73.7 $        2.8   

The following table shows the Company’s investments with gross unrealized losses and their fair value, aggregated by investment category and length of 
time that individual securities have been in a continuous unrealized loss position, at December 31, 2012 (in millions).

Less than 12 months      12 months or more Total

Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses
Fair Value

Unrealized 
Losses

Fair Value
Unrealized 

Losses

Debt securities issued by U.S Treasury and other 
U.S. government corporations and agencies

$              15.6 $          0.1 $          - $       - $         15.6 $            0.1

Debt securities issued by U.S. states and  
political subdivisions of states

6.9 0.1 - - 6.9 0.1

Corporate debt securities 17.3 0.1 - - 17.3 0.1

Residential mortgage-backed securities 10.2 0.2 - - 10.2 0.2

    Total $            50.0 $       0.5   $          - $         - $        50.0 $        0.5   

Net unrealized appreciation/(depreciation) on securities as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 is summarized as follows (in millions):

December 31, 
2013

December 31, 
2012

Fixed maturities $        11.2 $        47.6

Less:  Deferred income taxes        (3.9)        (16.7)

      Net Unrealized Appreciation  $        7.3           $        30.9          
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Net investment income, by type of investment, is as follows for the periods ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 (in millions):

December 31, 
2013

December 31, 
2012

Gross investment income:

   Fixed maturities  $        12.3    $      14.2   

   Mortgage loans, held for investment 1.0 0.8

   Limited partnerships 0.2 0.3

Gross investment income 13.5 15.3

Less: Investment expenses (0.9) (0.7)

Net investment income from continuing operations 12.6 14.6

Net investment income from discontinued operations 1.1 9.7

     Net investment income $        13.7 $      24.3  

Note 4---Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The Company has adopted ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, for all financial instruments accounted for at fair value on a recurring 
basis in the Company’s financial statements.  ASC 820 established a new framework for measuring fair value and expands related disclosures. Broadly, the 
framework requires fair value to be determined based on the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) 
in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants. It also establishes market or 
observable inputs as the preferred source of values, followed by assumptions based on hypothetical transactions in the absence of market inputs.

ASC 820 specifies that a hierarchy of valuation techniques be determined for each asset based on whether the inputs to the valuation technique for those 
assets are observable or unobservable.  Observable inputs reflect market data corroborated by independent sources while unobservable inputs reflect as-
sumptions that are not observable in an active market or are developed internally.  These two types of inputs create three valuation hierarchy levels:

• Level 1 valuations reflect quoted market or exchange prices for the actual or identical assets or liabilities in active markets. 

• Level 2 valuations reflect inputs other than quoted prices in Level 1 which are observable. The inputs can include some or all of the following into a valu-
ation model:

quoted prices on similar assets in active markets

quoted prices on actual assets that are not active

inputs other than quoted prices such as yield curves, volatilities, prepayments speeds

inputs derived from market data  

• Level 3 valuations reflect valuations in which one or more of the significant valuation inputs are not observable in an active market, there is limited if 
any market activity, and/or are based on management inputs into a valuation model.
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The Company maintains policies and procedures to value instruments using the best and most relevant data available. The Company determines the fair 
value of financial assets utilizing prices obtained from a third party pricing service.  Typical inputs used to determine fair value include, but are not limited 
to, reported trades, broker/dealer prices, benchmark yields and issuer spreads.  In addition, the Company has an investment management team that reviews 
the valuation, including independent price validation for certain instruments. 

The following section describes the valuation methodologies the Company uses to measure the financial instruments at fair value.

Investments in Fixed Maturity and Debt Securities
All fixed maturity and debt securities are considered available for sale and consist of: United States (“US”) Treasury notes and bonds which trade actively 
and are categorized as Level 1; corporate bonds, government (“Gov’t”) or agency debt, securitized debt (collateralized mortgage obligation or mortgage 
backed security) and private placements (except where noted) have valuations that use such inputs as dealer quotations, matrix pricing methodology, 
similar traded securities, and other observable data to generate their fair values resulting in a Level 2 categorization; the Company held two fixed securities 
at January 1, 2012 whose valuation was calculated internally using a discounted cash flow method (present value of future payments due).  Due to the use 
of unobservable inputs and lack of liquidity of the instruments, they were classified as Level 3 assets as of January 1, 2012.  One security was sold and one 
security matured during 2012.

Investments in Cash Equivalents
Investments in cash equivalents consist of money market fund holdings, US Treasury bills and certificates of deposit. All of these instruments have readily 
available market or exchange prices in an active market and are classified as Level 1 assets.  

Separate Account Assets
The amount shown on the balance sheet represents the total of all Separate Account assets held in each of the accounts managed within the Company.  
Assets held in the Separate Accounts consists of US Treasury bills, US Treasury bonds, cash, common stock and investments in money market funds all of 
which are Level 1 assets as their values are readily available in the open market. Corporate bonds, corporate commercial paper, government or agency debt 
and securitized debt are valued using the market approach and priced using pricing models or matrix pricing making them Level 2 assets.  Mortgage loans 
are fair valued internally using a discounted cash flow method and are categorized as Level 3 assets.  Real estate is fair valued internally using a combina-
tion of external appraisals, internal valuations, and management’s best estimates based on actual market metrics as observed on an asset by asset basis 
from month to month and is categorized as Level 3 assets.
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The following table presents the Company’s assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2013 (in millions):

Balance Sheet Line Item Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fair value at 
12/31/2013

Fixed Maturities
Debt securities issued by U.S 
Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

  $   11.5     $    19.6     $      -   $    31.1

Debt securities issued by U.S. 
states and political subdivisions 
of states

-           64.4     -          64.4

Debt securities issued by foreign 
governments

-             0.6    -            0.6

Corporate debt securities -         103.8    -             103.8

Residential mortgage-backed 
securities

-           82.3    -               82.3

Fixed Maturities Total        11.5                     270.7   -        282.2

Cash Equivalents
Debt securities issued by U.S 
Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

    0.7  - -         0.7

Money market funds  34.8  - -       34.8

Cash Equivalents Total        35.5 - -      35.5

Total Investments $     47.0 $     270.7  $       - $ 317.7

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during 2013 or 2012.
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The following table presents the Company’s assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2012 (in millions):

Balance Sheet Line Item Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fair value at 
12/31/2012

Fixed Maturities
Debt securities issued by U.S 
Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

  $   46.3     $    70.7     $      -   $  117.0

Debt securities issued by U.S. 
states and political subdivisions 
of states

-         133.6     -      133.6

Debt securities issued by foreign 
governments

-             3.1    -          3.1

Corporate debt securities -         213.0    -            213.0

Residential mortgage-backed 
securities

- 172.3   -            172.3

Fixed Maturities Total        46.3                     592.7  -      639.0

Cash Equivalents
Debt securities issued by U.S 
Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

    2.5  - -       2.5

Money market funds  43.8 - -    43.8

Cash Equivalents Total        46.3 - -     46.3

Total Investments $     92.6 $     592.7  $       - $  685.3

The following table summarizes the changes in financial assets classified in Level 3 for Ullico Inc. consolidated investments from January 1, 2012 to Decem-
ber 31, 2012.

Balance, January 1, 2012 $       13.6  

 Sale of security (13.5)

 Paydowns of private placement bond (0.1)

Balance, December 31, 2012 $          -  

The decrease in Level 3 assets noted above was due to the sale of a mortgage-backed security, Structured Asset SECS 1999-RM1, in the third quarter of 
2012.
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The following table details assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2013 for all Separate Accounts (in millions).  Note that the 
Balance Sheet categories “Separate Account Assets” and “Separate Account Liabilities” include receivables and other items that are not required to be 
disclosed under ASC 820.

Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fair value at 
12/31/2013

Equities Common Stock $     52.1 $   - $    - $      52.1

Equities Total        52.1     - -         52.1

Fixed Maturities

Debt securities issued by U.S Treasury and 
other U.S. government corporations and 
agencies

-                        94.4 -         94.4

Debt securities issued by foreign  
governments

-   - -         -

Commercial mortgage-backed securities -       128.8 -      128.8

Corporate debt securities - 10.9 -       10.9

Residential mortgage-backed securities - 76.6 -       76.6

Fixed Maturities Total -       310.7 -        310.7

Cash Equivalents

Debt securities issued by U.S Treasury and 
other U.S. government corporations and 
agencies

 - 23.6 -         23.6

Corporate debt securities        18.3  7.0 -          25.3

Money market funds      132.8 - -      132.8

Cash Equivalents Total      151.1  30.6 -       181.7

Mortgage Loans Mortgage Loans            -  -  1,823.8     1,823.8

Real Estate Real Estate                                                               72.2         72.2

Total Separate Account Investments $  203.2 $ 341.3 $ 1,896.0 $ 2,440.5
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The following table present additional information about valuation methodologies and inputs used for investments that are measured at fair value and 
categorized within Level 3 as of December 31, 2013 (in millions):

Investment Type Fair Value
Valuation  

Techniques
Unobservable 

Inputs
Range 

Weighted  
Average

Mortgage Loans $1,259.0
Discounted Cash 

Flow
Discount rates 2.62 -5.94% 3.89%

Cap rates 4.0 - 10.0%

Market rates 2.25 -– 8.0%

Mortgage Loans 483.3 Held at Par (a) N/A N/A N/A

Mortgage Loans 81.5 Appraisal Value (b) N/A N/A N/A

Real Estate 72.2 Appraisal Value (b) N/A N/A N/A

Total Level 3 investments $1,896.0     

(a) Approximates fair value.

(b) The fair value of the investment is based on a third party appraisal report.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 during 2013 or 2012.

The following table summarizes the changes in financial assets classified in Level 3 for Separate Accounts from January 1, 2013 to December 31, 2013 (in 
millions): 

Separate Account Assets Real Estate Mortgage Loans   Total

Balance, January 1, 2013 $     65.1 $         1,684.8  $      1,749.9

 Total gain or losses (realized/unrealized):

Realized gains/(losses) attributable to variable annuity contract holders (8.9) (26.1) (35.0)

Unrealized gains/(losses) attributable to variable annuity contract holders - 29.5 29.5

Purchases  61.5 376.4 437.9

Sales/Repayments (45.5) (240.8) (286.3)

Transfers in and out of Level 3 - - -

Balance, December 31, 2013 $         72.2 $          1,823.8  $      1,896.0

The gains/(losses) for the period included in unrealized gains/(losses) attributable to variable annuity contract relating to mortgage loans still held at 
December 31, 2013 was $(5.7) million.
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The following table details assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2012 for all Separate Accounts (in millions).  Note that the 
Balance Sheet categories “Separate Account Assets” and “Separate Account Liabilities” include receivables and other items that are not required to be 
disclosed under ASC 820.

Asset Category Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Fair value at 
12/31/2012

Equities Common Stock $      34.1 $            - $              - $          34.1

Equities Total        34.1     -       -         34.1

Fixed Maturities

Debt securities issued by U.S 
Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

-                       33.8 -        33.8

Debt securities issued by foreign 
governments

-  0.1 -         0.1

Commercial mortgage-backed 
securities

-   2.9 -         2.9

Corporate debt securities - 11.7 -       11.7

Residential mortgage-backed securities - 15.6 -       15.6

Fixed Maturities Total -  64.1 -        64.1

Cash Equivalents

Debt securities issued by U.S 
Treasury and other U.S. government 
corporations and agencies

 -  380.6 -        380.6

Corporate debt securities           -     1.0 -          1.0

Money market funds      189.1 - -       189.1

Cash Equivalents Total      189.1  381.6 -       570.7

Mortgage Loans Mortgage Loans            -  -  1,684.8     1,684.8

Real Estate Real Estate                                                            - -      65.1         65.1

Total Separate Account Investments    $    223.2 $    445.7 $    1,749.9 $     2,418.8
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The following table presents additional information about valuation methodologies and inputs used for investments that are measured at fair value and 
categorized within Level 3 as of December 31, 2012 (in millions):

Investment Type Fair Value Valuation  
Techniques

Unobservable  
Inputs

Range Weighted  
Average

Mortgage Loans $         929.3 Discounted Cash Flow Discount rate 2.65 -5.84% 3.86%

Cap rate 6.0 - 12.0%

Market rates 2.75 - 7.0%

Mortgage Loans 640.8 Held at Par (a) N/A N/A N/A

Mortgage Loans 114.7 Appraisal Value (b) N/A N/A N/A

Real Estate 65.1 Appraisal Value (b) N/A N/A N/A

Total Level 3 investments $     1,749.9     

(a) Approximates fair value.

(b) The fair value of the investment is based on a third party appraisal report.

The following table summarizes the changes in financial assets classified in Level 3 for Separate Accounts from January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2012 (in 
millions): 

Separate Account Assets Real Estate Mortgage Loans   Total

Balance, January 1, 2012 $      31.0 $      2,692.3  $      2,723.3  

 Total gain or losses (realized/unrealized):

Realized gains/(losses) attributable to variable annuity contract holders  (37.0) (4.6) (41.6)

Unrealized gains/(losses) attributable to variable annuity contract holders - 41.9  41.9

Purchases 95.5 128.8 224.3

Sales/Repayments  (24.4) (1,173.6) (1,198.0)

Transfers in and out of Level 3 - - -

Balance, December 31, 2012 $      65.1  $      1,684.8 $      1,749.9 

The gains/(losses) for the period included in unrealized gains/(losses) attributable to variable annuity contract relating to mortgage loans still held at 
December 31, 2012 was $7.3 million.

Changes in Separate Account assets are fully offset by the same change in Separate Account liabilities.  There is no impact on the consolidated statement of 
operations in regards to these changes.

There were no assets in the Company’s general account measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012. 
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ASC 825, Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments, requires disclosure of fair value information about financial instruments, whether or not 
recognized in the Balance Sheet, for which it is practicable to estimate that value.  In cases where quoted market prices are not available for identical or 
comparable financial instruments, fair values are based on estimates using the present values of estimated cash flows or other valuation techniques.  
Estimated fair values can be significantly affected by the methods and assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates as to the amounts and 
timing of future cash flows.  Accordingly, the fair values may not represent actual values of the financial instruments that could have been realized by the 
Company as of year-end or that will be realized in the future.

Fair values for the Company’s insurance contracts other than investment contracts are not required to be disclosed under ASC 825.  However, the estimated 
fair value and future cash flows of liabilities under all insurance contracts are taken into consideration in the Company’s overall management of interest 
rate risk, which minimizes exposure to changing interest rates through the matching of investment maturities with amounts due under insurance contracts.  
Management believes that disclosing the estimated fair value of all assets without a corresponding revaluation of all liabilities associated with insurance 
contracts can be misinterpreted.  The aggregate fair value amounts presented do not represent the actual value of the Company.

The following summarizes the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair value of financial instruments. 

Limited partnerships and limited liability corporations are reported under the equity method of accounting.  The carrying value of the limited partnerships 
and limited liability corporations is assumed to approximate its fair value.  The fair value of mortgage loans is estimated through the use of discounted cash 
flow techniques using interest rates currently being offered for similar loans to borrowers with similar credit ratings. Mortgage loans with similar charac-
teristics are aggregated for purposes of this analysis.  Deposit-type annuity contracts with defined maturities and policyholder funds on deposit liabilities 
are valued using discounted cash flow techniques based upon interest rates currently being offered by the Company for similar contracts with maturities 
consistent with the contracts being valued.  Deposit-type annuity contracts with no defined maturities are valued using discounted cash flow techniques 
based upon a risk free interest rate, adjusted for Company specific non-performance risk and a non-stochastic process margin or the amount payable on 
demand at the reporting date.  Other assets and liabilities considered financial instruments such as premium and accounts receivable, accrued investment 
income and cash are generally of a short-term nature and their carrying values are deemed to approximate fair value.

(in millions) December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Financial Instrument Carrying Value Fair Value Carrying Value Fair Value

Investments in limited partnerships and limited liability corporations $    7.6 $    7.6 $    6.6 $    6.6

Mortgage loans held for investment 21.4 22.0 21.7 22.1

Policyholder funds on deposit 4.3 4.3 3.7 3.7

Deposit-type annuity contracts 64.1 62.5 81.2 79.0
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Note 5---Mortgage Loans - Held for Investment

Mortgage loans held for investment and the related valuation reserves, if any, are as follows at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 (in millions):

December 31, 
2013

December 31, 
2012

Commercial mortgages  $      21.2  $      21.2

Residential mortgages 0.2 0.5

Less:  Mortgage valuation reserves - -

     Net Mortgage Loans  $      21.4    $      21.7   

The Company’s mortgage loans held for investment, net of related reserves, if any, for significant states at December 31, 2013 are as follows (dollars in 
millions):

Number  Balance  % of  
portfolio

California 2 $      8.5 39.7%

Michigan 1 8.4 39.3%

Virginia 2 3.0 14.0%

Illinois 1 0.7 3.3%

Other states 4 0.8 3.7%

     Total 10 $      21.4       100.0%

Note 6---Property and Equipment

Property and equipment consisted of the following at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 (in millions):

December 31, 
2013

December 31, 
2012

Leasehold improvements $       6.4 $       6.4

Furniture and equipment 5.9 5.9

Software 14.2 23.6

  Property and equipment, at cost 26.5 35.9

Less:  Accumulated depreciation and amortization     (22.1)     (28.6)

     Net Property and Equipment  $       4.4  $       7.3
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Note 7---Deferred Policy Acquisition Costs

Policy acquisition costs deferred for amortization against future income and the related amortization charged to expense are as follows as of and for the 
periods ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 (in millions):

December 31, 
2013

December 31, 
2012

Balance, January 1 $               28.6  $               30.1  

Costs deferred during the period:                

  Direct marketing costs 3.3 3.8

  Premium taxes 0.4 5.3

  Underwriting, compensation and other acquisition costs 18.3 24.0

    Total costs deferred during the period 22.0 33.1

Less:  Costs amortized during the period (20.6) (34.6)

Effect of deconsolidation of Ullico Casualty (3.5) -

     Balance $               26.5  $               28.6 

No premium deficiency reserve was established at December 31, 2013 as the sum of expected estimated losses and loss adjustment expenses, unamortized 
acquisition costs and maintenance costs did not exceed unearned premium.

Note 8---Claim Reserves

Activity in the liability for unpaid life and health claims as of and for the periods ended December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 is summarized as fol-
lows (in millions):

December 31, 
2013

December 31, 
2012

Balance, January 1 $         62.1         $         71.5         

     Less: reinsurance recoverables 6.2 1.9

Net balance, January 1 55.9 69.6

Incurred related to:

   Current year 103.7 119.7

   Prior years (3.1) (5.8)

Total Incurred 100.6 113.9

Paid related to:

   Current year 59.6 82.0

   Prior years 40.2 45.6

Total Paid 99.8 127.6

Net balance 56.7 55.9

     Plus: reinsurance recoverables 6.5 6.2

Total claim reserves $          63.2 $          62.1

Total policy reserves                  114.7                  116.1

Total life, accident and health and annuity reserves $        177.9        $   178.2
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The Company’s life and accident and health operations experienced favorable prior year development of $3.1 million for the period ending December 31, 
2013.  The following products had favorable prior year reserve development: medical stop loss ($3.8 million), specialty and other health ($1.0 million), 
supplemental health ($0.4 million), and supplemental life ($0.3 million).  The following products experienced unfavorable prior year reserve development: 
group life ($1.7 million), home health care ($0.3 million) and group health reinsurance assumed pools ($0.4 million). The favorable reserve development was 
due to better than anticipated experience for benefits and claims expense as well as the release of appropriate year-end reserve margins.

The Company’s life and accident and health operations experienced favorable prior year development of $5.8 million for the period ending December 31, 
2012.  The following products had favorable reserve development: medical stop loss ($3.7 million), group life ($0.3 million), supplemental health ($0.5 mil-
lion), supplemental life ($0.7 million) and home health care ($0.7 million).  The claim reserve development for the Company’s group pharmacy products expe-
rienced unfavorable prior year development of $0.2 million.  The favorable reserve development was due to better than anticipated experience for benefits 
and claims expense as well as the release of appropriate year-end reserve margins.

Activity in the liability for unpaid property and casualty losses and loss adjustment expenses (“LAE”) as of and for the periods ended December 31, 2013 and 
December 31, 2012 is summarized as follows (in millions): 

December 31, 
2013

December 31, 
2012

Balance, January 1  $       499.9  $       298.5

     Less: reinsurance recoverables 158.0 112.9

Net balance, January 1 341.9 185.6

Incurred related to:

   Current year (2013 includes $13.9 related to Ullico Casualty) 18.2 188.7

   Prior years (2013 includes $1.7 related to Ullico Casualty) 1.7 72.5

Total Incurred 19.9 261.2

Paid related to:

   Current year (2013 includes $0.2 related to Ullico Casualty) 0.2 23.4 

   Prior years (2013 includes $16.3 related to Ullico Casualty) 16.3 81.5

Total Paid 16.5 104.9

Less:  Effect of deconsolidation of Ullico Casualty    (341.1) -

Net balance 4.2 341.9

     Plus: reinsurance recoverables - 158.0

Balance  $         4.2        $      499.9       

The Company’s property and casualty operations experienced unfavorable prior year development of $1.7 million and $72.5 million for the periods ended 
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively.  

The unfavorable development in 2013 is primarily related to the workers’ compensation line of business, prior to deconsolidation.

The unfavorable development in 2012 primarily related to the following products: workers’ compensation ($54.9 million), general liability ($6.3 million), com-
mercial auto liability ($5.9 million), surety ($3.4 million) and professional liability ($2.1 million).  The majority of the prior year adverse development occurred 
on the workers’ compensation line of business. The unfavorable development is included in the discontinued operations line in the statements of operations.  
Several factors contributed to this development:

• For business written by Harbor America Specialty Broker (“Harbor”), the large deductible reserve credits taken in prior years were reduced based upon 
a deterioration of Harbor’s financial condition during 2012 that raised significant doubt for the collection of large deductible credits.  This assessment 
resulted in $15.9 million of adverse development.
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• Business written by Patriot Underwriters, Inc. (“Patriot”) adversely developed by $12.4 million.  A significant part of this business was large professional 
employer organization/staffing clients and that business continued to perform worse than previously expected in 2012.

• The Company increased its exposure to workers compensation written by certain Managing General Underwriters (“MGU”) beginning in 2009.  Given the 
limited historical experience available to the Company when setting loss ratios and reserves after increasing our exposure to this business, the Company 
relied on initial pricing assumptions and industry loss development statistics in setting loss reserves.  Over time, the Company assigned more weight to 
actual, emerging claims experience, which, through 2012, has been worse than expected.  The heavier reliance on unfavorable emerging claim experience 
coupled with the results of a review by a third party claims specialist investigating the case reserving practices of our third party administrators did result 
in unfavorable prior year development  of $22.1 million for MGU workers compensation exposure. 

Increases and decreases of this nature occur as the result of claim settlements during the current year, and as additional information is received regarding 
unpaid additional claims.  Recent loss development trends are also taken into account in evaluating the overall adequacy of unpaid losses and LAE. 

Included in the property and casualty 2012 current year incurred losses are $64.5 million of charges for uncollectible reinsurance and allowance for large 
deductible losses. See Note 9, Reinsurance, for additional information. The charges for uncollectible reinsurance and allowance for large deductible losses 
are included in the discontinued operations line in the statements of operations.  

Note 9---Reinsurance

In the normal course of business, the Company assumes risks from and cedes certain parts of its risks to other insurance companies.  The primary purpose 
of ceded reinsurance is to limit losses from large exposures.

Reinsurance contracts do not relieve the Company of its obligations to policyholders.  To the extent that reinsuring companies are later unable to meet obli-
gations under reinsurance agreements, the Company would be liable for these obligations.  The Company evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers 
and attempts to limit its exposure to any one reinsurer.  The following information separates the Company’s reinsurance activity between continuing opera-
tions and discontinued operations.

Continuing Operations
Union Labor Life maintains certain reinsurance agreements under excess of loss, quota share, and catastrophe coverage.  For Stop Loss contracts, the Com-
pany retained a maximum per person liability of $1.0 million less the underlying plan’s self-insured retention up until October 2012 renewals.  At that time, 
the Company’s maximum was raised to $1.25 million plus 25% quota share on claims between $1.25 million and $2.0 million.  For group life and AD&D, and 
direct marketing life and AD&D policies, the Company retains a maximum of $125,000 per policy.

Effective October 1, 2012, certain life insurance, individual agency and group conversion life policies issued by Union Labor Life and Ullico Life Insurance 
Company (“Ullico Life”) were 100% ceded to Southern Financial Life Insurance Company (“SFIC”), a Louisiana domestic company. This agreement fulfills the 
risk transfer requirements in accordance with ASC 944-20-15-51. Union Labor Life and Ullico Life transferred $13.2 million in cash on December 31, 2012 to 
a trust (with SFIC as the beneficiary) which represented the net liabilities for the business.   Union Labor Life and Ullico Life received $1.8 million in ceded 
commissions which represented the present value of the future profits of the business. Union Labor Life and Ullico Life will be reimbursed by SFIC for all 
direct costs for the administration of the business assumed by SFIC.  Under the arrangement, SFIC is required to hold in trust at JP Morgan Chase 102% of 
the outstanding liabilities as of the reporting date.   As of December 31, 2013, there were approximately $14.8 million in reserves ceded to SFIC.  

Effective October 1, 2012, Union Labor Life entered into a 30% modified coinsurance (“modco”) arrangement on its medical stop loss business with Canada 
Life Assurance Company.  Under this agreement, Union Labor Life will retain its liability on the policies net of the reinsured obligation.  This agreement 
fulfills the risk transfer requirements in accordance with ASC 944-20-15-51.  The modco reserve account is defined as the amount of reserves held by Union 
Labor Life for the reinsurance obligations and is adjusted each reporting period by the modco reserve adjustment.   The amount of ceded premium and 
claims was $24.2 million and $16.6 million for 2013 and $6.1 million and $4.3 million for 2012, respectively.  The amount of stop loss modco reserve adjust-
ment for 2013 was an increase of $0.1 million. The amount of stop loss modco reserve adjustment for 2012 was a decrease of $0.3 million.
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During 2006, certain annuity and life policies issued by Ullico Life Insurance Company and 100% co-insured with Sagicor Life Insurance Company (a Texas 
domestic company and formerly American Founders Life Insurance Company) were assumed by Sagicor Life Insurance Company, thereby releasing Ullico Life 
Insurance Company of any current or future liability related to these policies.  As of December 31, 2013, there is approximately $2.2 million in reserves ceded 
to Sagicor Life. 

Starting in 2009, Union Labor Life entered into a reinsurance arrangement with Fidelity Security Life Insurance Company (“Fidelity Life”) and Gerber Life 
Insurance Company (“Gerber”) whereby stop loss premium is written on Fidelity Life and Gerber paper.  Union Labor Life then assumes 95% and 90% of the 
written premium from Fidelity Life and Gerber, respectively.  In January of 2013, the relationship with Gerber was ended and an agreement with Fidelity Life 
Insurance of New York was entered into in its place.

For 2013, Labor Captive participates in a single reinsurance arrangement wherein Labor Captive assumes 60% of the first $2.0 million of loss per occur-
rence.  This agreement covers fiduciary and union liability policies produced by UCG as program administrator for Alterra.

Discontinued Operations
In a quota share reinsurance arrangement, Ullico Casualty entered into a managing general agent agreement with Patriot in which Patriot underwrote 
workers’ compensation policies for Ullico Casualty.  The agreement was terminated effective March 31, 2012.   The majority of the policies written were in 
conjunction with agency captives in which the insurance broker participates in the underwriting risk.  Through quota share reinsurance agreements, Ullico 
Casualty ceded a portion of the risk directly to the agency captives and to Guarantee Insurance Company (“Guarantee”), an affiliate of Patriot, and retained 
a portion of the risk.  The percentage of risk ceded to Guarantee and the agency captives varies by agency captive, with Ullico Casualty on average retaining 
approximately 15% of the risk.   Ullico Casualty offsets the credit risk for reinsurance recoverables from Guarantee and the agency captives by requiring 
collateral be held in a trust account of which Ullico Casualty is the beneficiary.  This trust account, owned by Guarantee (with Ullico Casualty as the benefi-
ciary), was a commingled account holding collateral from both Guarantee and the agency captives.  Funds in this account can be used by the Ullico Casualty 
if Guarantee or the agency captives are unable to reimburse Ullico Casualty for their portion of paid claims.  At December 31, 2012, the Company recorded 
a write down of $35.0 million on its reinsurance recoverable to recognize probable losses from insufficient collateral to pay future ceded claims.  Addition-
ally, the Company wrote off $9.1 million of net premium receivable due from Patriot. The total estimated exposure related to Patriot and Guarantee as of 
December 31, 2012 amounted to $59.4 million. The total write down of $44.1 million is included in the discontinued operations line item on the consolidated 
statement of operations.

In another quota share reinsurance agreement, Ullico Casualty ceded workers’ compensation business underwritten by Harbor to Red Hawk Re SPC, a captive 
insurance company owned by the principals of Harbor. Ullico Casualty offset the credit risk of reinsurance recoverables from Red Hawk Re SPC by the amount 
of collateral placed by the captive in a trust account for which Ullico Casualty was the beneficiary.  At December 31, 2012, the Company recorded a write 
down of $6.6 million on its reinsurance recoverable to recognize anticipated losses from insufficient collateral to pay future ceded claims. The $6.6 million 
write down is included in the discontinued operations line item on the consolidated statement of operations.
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The effects of reinsurance on premium income and benefits and claims incurred for the periods ended December 31, 2013 and 2012 are as follows (in  
millions):

December 31, 
2013

December 31, 
2012

Life, health and annuities premium income:

  Direct $      133.2 $        123.3

  Assumed 32.1 43.6

  Ceded (32.3) (12.4)

     Net premium income earned  $      133.0  $       154.5

Property and casualty premiums written:     

  Direct  $             -         $              -        

  Assumed 19.4 -

  Ceded - -

     Net premium income written from continuing operations 19.4 -

     Net premium income written from discontinued operations 15.8                    149.0             

     Net premium income written $       35.2 $      149.0

Property and casualty premiums earned:

  Direct $             -        $              -        

  Assumed 9.5 -

  Ceded - -

     Net premium income earned from continuing operations 9.5        -

     Net premium income earned from discontinued operations 20.8 153.0

     Net premium income earned $       30.3 $      153.0

Life, health and annuities benefits and claims incurred:

  Direct  $     110.9         $         95.1        

  Assumed 20.3 30.6

  Ceded (26.7) (12.8)

     Net benefits and claims incurred $     104.5 $       112.9

Property and casualty benefits and claims incurred:

  Direct  $            -         $             -        

  Assumed    4.3    -

  Ceded                        -  -

     Net benefits and claims incurred from continuing operations      4.3  -

     Net benefits and claims incurred from discontinued operations 15.6 261.2

     Net benefits and claims incurred $       19.9 $      261.2
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Total amounts recoverable from reinsurers at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 are $25.1 million and $190.5 million, respectively.  

Reinsurance recoverables from reinsurers grouped by their A.M. Best rating for December 31, 2013 are as follows (in millions):

A.M. Best Rating Unpaid Losses Paid Losses Other Total

A++                                 $1.0                       $0.2 -          $1.2 

A+                                  0.2                           4.2 1.6              6.0 

A                                   -                          - -              - 

A- 2.3 - 0.1 2.4

B++ 0.2 - - 0.2

B+ - -  0.1                0.1 

Not rated by A.M. Best 14.7 0.5 - 15.2 

Total $18.4 $4.9 $1.8          $25.1 

Reinsurance recoverables from reinsurers grouped by their A.M. Best rating for December 31, 2012 are as follows (in millions):

A.M. Best Rating Unearned Premium Unpaid Losses Paid Losses Total

A++ $0.5                                 $1.3                       $0.1          $1.9 

A+                                 0.8                                  24.9                           4.5              30.2

A                                    1.2                                     11.0                          1.7              13.9 

A- - 22.7 1.5 24.2

B++ - 0.7 0.6 1.3

B+                               - 0.1                              -                 0.1 

Not rated by A.M. Best                                   5.9   112.8                           0.2              118.9 

Total                               $8.4 $173.5                         $8.6          $190.5 

The property and casualty reinsurers with significant unsecured balances with the Company are as follows (in millions):

December 31, 
2013

December 31, 
2012

Munich Re America $               - $               8.3

Berkley Insurance Company $               - $               8.0

Safety National Casualty Corporation $               - $               6.3

Knight Insurance Company $               - $               3.9
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Certain of the Company’s reinsurance agreements require the reinsurer to set up letters of credit or trust accounts as collateral for the Company’s benefit in 
the event of insolvency. 

The following collateral is available to the Company for amounts recoverable from reinsurers as of December 31, 2013 (in millions):

Regulation 114                                 
Trust

Letters of 
Credit

Total

Southern Financial Life Insurance Company $15.4                  -    $15.4 

MedTrans Insurance -              $0.2    0.2 

Total $15.4             $0.2 $15.6

The following collateral was available to the Company for amounts recoverable from reinsurers as of December 31, 2012 (in millions). The amounts are 
separated by continuing operations vs. discontinued operations:

Continuing Operations Regulation 114  Trust
 Letters of     

Credit
Total

Southern Financial Life Insurance Company $15.0                  -    $15.0 

MedTrans Insurance -                 $0.3    0.3 

Total $15.0               $0.3 $15.3 

Discontinued Operations
Regulation 114          

Trust
 Letters of     

Credit
Funds Held Total

Guarantee Insurance Company $38.5                    -              -    $38.5 

Knight Insurance Company -              $14.9            -    14.9 

Red Hawk Re SPC 12.0                  -              -    12.0 

Caledonian Reinsurance SPC 9.6                  -              -      9.6 

Ancora Re SPC 7.6                  -              -      7.6 

Green Oak Re SPC 7.2                  -              -      7.2 

White Rock Insurance 6.0                  -              -      6.0 

Atlantic Shores Captive 4.3                  -              -      4.3 

Kootenai Reinsurance Corporation 1.2                  -              -      1.2 

Roundstone Insurance 1.1                  -              -      1.1 

Rembrandt SPC 1.0                  -              -      1.0 

Alpine Re 0.9                  -              -     0.9 

Cherokee Reinsurance 0.8                  -              -      0.8 

Tiberius Reinsurance Company 0.6                  -              -      0.6 

Edgewater 0.5                   -              -      0.5 

United States Indemnity and Casualty Company -                 0.4            -      0.4 

Northwestern 0.4                   -              -      0.4 

Intrepid Re 0.1                   -              -      0.1 

Brewster Captive Company -                   -             $0.1    0.1 

Yukon 0.1                   -               -      0.1 

Total $91.9               $15.3           $0.1 $107.3 
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Note 10---Benefit Plans

Company Benefit Plans
Effective July 1, 2012, the Company merged its Ullico Inc. Pension Plan and Trust (the “Plan”), a single employer defined benefit plan, into the AFL-CIO Staff 
Retirement Plan, a multiemployer defined benefit plan with a fiscal year end of June 30.   There was no change in the current benefits of the Plan; however, 
the merger has impacted the accounting rules and other rules related to a single employer defined benefit plan versus a multiemployer defined benefit plan.  
Under the multiemployer pension plan accounting rules in subtopic ASC 715-80, Defined Benefit Plans - Pensions, the current recognition and measure-
ment guidance for an employer’s participation requires that an employer recognize its required contribution to the plan as pension or other postretirement 
benefit cost for the period and recognize a liability for any contributions due at the reporting date. The impact of the change from ASC 715-80 resulted in 
an increase in stockholder’s equity in the amount of $58.1 million net of tax, decrease in liabilities by $89.2 million, and decrease in deferred tax assets by 
$31.1 million in the consolidated financial statements. Included in the $58.1 million impact on stockholder’s equity was a $17.2 million (pre-tax) decrease in 
sales, general and administrative expense.

Effective July 1, 2012, the Company began contributing to the AFL-CIO Staff Retirement Plan, which covers certain eligible employees.  The risks of par-
ticipating in a multiemployer plan are different from single-employer plans as assets contributed to the multiemployer plan by one employer may be used 
to provide benefits to employees of other participating employers.  In addition, if a participating employer stops contributing to the plan, the unfunded 
obligations of the plan may be borne by the remaining participating employers.  If the Company chooses to stop participating in the multiemployer plan it 
may be required to pay the plan a withdrawal penalty based on the underfunded status of the plan.  The AFL-CIO Staff Retirement Plan records the present 
value of retirement incentive contributions using a discount rate of 7.5%.  The Company’s year-to-date contributions to the AFL-CIO Staff Retirement Plan 
represented more than 5% of all participating employer’s total contributions for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2013.

The financial health of a multiemployer plan is indicated by the zone status, as defined by the Pension Protection Act of 2006, which represents the funded 
status of the plan as certified by the plan’s actuary.  Plans in the red zone are less than 65% funded, the yellow zone are between 65% and 80% funded and 
green zone are at least 80% funded.

The following information details the Company’s participation in the AFL-CIO Staff Retirement Plan:

Employer Identification Number/Pension Plan Number:   52-6044583-001

Pension Protection Act Zone Status as of June 30, 2013:  Green

Company Contributions for 2013 and 2012:   $7.7 million and $5.0 million

The AFL-CIO Staff Retirement Plan’s investment strategy includes investing in securities which provide long-term appreciation and revenue generation.  The 
strategy also includes investments in hedge funds in order to attain above average rates of returns and long-term capital growth.

The Company also sponsors an unfunded non-qualified defined benefit plan and a defined contribution savings and investment plan, as well as other 
postretirement health and life insurance benefits to eligible retirees.  The Company made matching contributions to its 401(k) plan of $0.8 million in 2013 
and 2012. 
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Information with respect to the Company’s defined benefit plan and asset activity and defined benefit plan obligation is as follows (in millions): 

Obligations and Funded Status
Qualified Pension  

Benefits
Non-qualified  

Pension Benefits
Postretirement  

Benefits

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Change in benefits obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of year $      - $      199.7 $      11.0  $        9.8  $      19.5  $      19.2 

Service cost - 1.9 0.2 0.1 0.1 0.1

Interest cost - 5.0 0.4 0.5 0.6 0.8

Plan amendments - - - - - -

Actuarial loss/(gain)        - 17.3 (0.4) 1.2 (4.1) 0.3

Benefits paid           - (3.7) (0.5) (0.6) (0.9) (0.9)

Transfer to other plan - (220.2) - - - -

Benefit obligation at end of year $      -  $      - $      10.7 $      11.0 $      15.2 $      19.5 

Qualified Pension  
Benefits

Non-qualified  
Pension Benefits

Postretirement  
Benefits

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Change in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets beginning of year $      -  $      109.2  $      -   $      -   $      -   $      -  

Market adjustment - (1.1) -  -  -  -  

Actual return on plan assets - 7.6              -              -              -  -  

Employer contribution - 3.9 0.5 0.6 0.9  0.9  

Benefits paid - (3.7) (0.5) (0.6)   (0.9)    (0.9)

Administrative expenses - (0.2) -  -  -  -  

Transfer to other plan - (115.7) - - - -

Fair value of plan assets end of year $      -  $      -  $      -   $      -   $      -   $      -  

Information for the Company’s pension plans with accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets is as follows (in millions):

Non-qualified Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits

2013 2012 2013 2012

Accumulated benefit obligation  $      10.3   $      10.6   $      -  $      -

Benefit obligation 10.7 11.0 15.2 19.5

Fair value of assets - - - -

Funded status $      (10.7) $      (11.0) $      (15.2) $      (19.5) 

Amounts recognized in the consolidated balance sheet consist of:

Current liabilities (0.5) (0.5) (1.0) (1.2)

Non-current liabilities (10.2) (10.5) (14.2) (18.3)
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Non-qualified Pension Benefits Postretirement Benefits

2013 2012 2013 2012

Amounts recognized in Accumulated Other Comprehensive  
Income consist of:

Net actuarial loss/(gain)  $      1.4  $      2.0  $       1.2  $       5.4

Prior service cost/(credit) 0.3 0.4 (7.5) (8.5)

Net amount recognized $      1.7 $      2.4  $      (6.3)  $     (3.1)

The other changes in plan assets and benefit obligations recognized in other comprehensive income are as follows (in millions): 

Qualified Pension 
Benefits

Non-qualified Pension 
Benefits

Postretirement Benefits

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

New net loss/(gain)  $      -   $         14.8   $      (0.4)   $      1.2   $      (4.1)  $      0.3 

Amortization of prior service credit/(cost) - (0.1)     (0.2)     (0.2) 1.0 1.0

Amortization of net gain/(loss) - (2.7) (0.2) - (0.1) (0.3)

Transfer to other plan - (84.0) - - - -

Total recognized in other comprehensive income  $      -  $      (72.0)  $      (0.8)  $      1.0  $      (3.2)  $      1.0 

Total recognized in other comprehensive income and net periodic 
benefit cost

 $      -  $      (66.2)  $         0.2  $      1.8  $      (3.4)  $      1.2 

The components of net periodic benefit cost are as follows (in millions):

Qualified Pension  
Benefits

Non-qualified  
Pension Benefits

Postretirement Benefits

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012

Service cost  $      -   $      2.2   $      0.2   $      0.1   $        0.1  $       0.1 

Interest cost - 5.0 0.5 0.5 0.6 0.8

Expected return on plan assets            -         (4.2) - - - -

Amortization of prior service cost - 0.1 0.2 0.2 (1.0) (0.9)

Amortization of net loss/(gain) - 2.7 0.1 - 0.1 0.2

Net periodic benefit cost  $      -  $      5.8  $      1.0  $      0.8  $      (0.2)  $       0.2 

Information regarding the estimated amortization amounts for the year ended December 31, 2014 is as follows (in millions):

Non-qualified  
Pension Benefits

Postretirement Benefits

Amortization of prior service cost $      0.2      $      (1.0)

Amortization of net loss/(gain) -                           -

Total $      0.2      $      (1.0)
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The estimated net loss for postretirement benefit plans that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income into net periodic benefit cost 
over the next fiscal year is $0.1 million.

The rate assumptions utilized as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 are as follows:

Non-qualified Pension 
Benefits

Postretirement  
Benefits

2013 2012 2013 2012

Discount Rate 4.7% 4.0% 4.5% 4.0%

Expected return on plan assets - - - -

Rate of compensation increase 3.0% 3.0% 3.0% 3.0%

The Company uses December 31 as the measurement date for its pension and postretirement plans.

For postretirement health benefit measurement purposes, a 8.5% annual rate of increase in the per capita cost of covered health care benefits was assumed 
for the year ending December 31, 2013.  The rate was assumed to decrease gradually to 5.0% until 2020 and remain at that level thereafter. 

Assumed health care cost trend rates have a significant effect on the amounts reported for health care plans. A one-percentage-point change in the as-
sumed health care cost trend rates would have the following effects:

1 Percentage Point Increase        1 Percentage Point Decrease

Effect on Total of Service and Interest Cost  
for year ended December 31, 2013

$0.1 million $(0.1) million

Effect on Benefit Obligation as of  
December 31, 2013

$1.4 million $(1.2) million

As of December 31, 2013, the following benefit payments, which reflect expected future services, are expected to be paid from the benefit plans (in millions).  
These benefit payments are calculated using the same rate assumptions previously noted.

Non-qualified pension  
Benefits

Postretirement 
 Benefits

2014 $          0.6 $          1.0

2015 0.6 1.0

2016 0.6 1.1

2017 0.6 1.1

2018 0.6 1.1

2019-2023 3.2 5.4
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Note 11 --- Income Taxes

The Company files a consolidated life-nonlife Federal income tax return including all eligible subsidiaries.  The components of income tax (expense)/benefit 
are as follows (in millions):

December 31, 
2013

December 31, 
2012

Federal Income Tax (Expense)/Benefit

  Current $          1.5 $          (0.6)

  Deferred (5.2) (24.2)

    Federal income tax expense (3.7) (24.8)

State Income Tax Expense

  Current  -  - 

  Deferred  -  -

     State income tax expense - -

Income Tax Expense from continuing operations  $          (3.7)  $          (24.8)

Income Tax Expense from discontinued operations (4.7) (0.6)

Income Tax Expense $          (8.4) (25.4)

The reconciliation of Federal taxes computed at the statutory rate of 35% to the income tax (expense)/benefit is as follows (in millions):

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Federal income tax (expense)/benefit at statutory rate $          (11.8) $          46.7

Valuation allowance                         3.8     (71.8)     

Deconsolidation gain                        13.3 -

Deconsolidation of deferred tax assets                       (13.5)   -

Other, net                          (0.2) (0.3)

     Federal Income Tax Expense $          (8.4) $          (25.4)
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The tax effects of items comprising the Company’s net Federal deferred income tax asset are as follows at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 (in 
millions):

December 31, 
2013

  December  31, 
2012

Federal Deferred Tax Asset

   Insurance reserves $          4.3 $          23.6

   Pension and postretirement benefits 9.0 10.6

   Deferred partnership and real estate losses 2.6 4.1

   Tax effect of net operating loss carryforwards 15.4 36.3

   Deferred subsidiary loss 42.2 -

   Tax credit carryover 1.8 1.0

   Uncollectible reinsurance/bad debt 3.9 21.7

   Other 2.1 2.6

   Valuation allowance (68.0) (71.8)

      Subtotal Federal deferred tax asset 13.3 28.1

Federal Deferred Tax Liability

   Deferred policy acquisition costs and ceding commissions 8.3 9.4

   Developed software and excess depreciation 0.8 1.6

   Unrealized capital gains 4.2 17.1

      Subtotal Federal deferred tax liability 13.3 28.1

Net Federal Deferred Tax Asset $          - $          -

As of December 31, 2013, the Company has concluded that it is more likely than not that the benefit from net operating loss carryforwards and other deferred 
tax assets will not be realized in the foreseeable future. Based on this assessment, the Company has recorded a valuation allowance of $68.0 million against 
the deferred tax asset, in accordance with ASC 740, Accounting for Income Taxes. 

As of December 31, 2013, the Company has federal regular-tax net operating loss carry forwards of $44.0 million, which will be used to offset future taxable 
income.  Regular tax net operating loss carry forwards consist of $41.8 million for the non-life companies which start to expire in 2023 and $2.2 million for 
the life companies which start to expire in 2028. 

As of December 31, 2013, for alternative minimum tax purposes, the Company has operating loss carry forwards of $42.0 million, consisting of $41.2 million 
for the non-life companies which start to expire in 2023 and $0.8 million for the life companies which start to expire in 2028.  

The Company paid $0.1 million and $0.8 million of federal income tax as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

There are no penalties on income taxes paid or accrued for 2013 or 2012.   There are no material unrecognized tax benefits within the meaning of ASC 740-
10-65-2 and management does not expect any significant increase or decrease within the following 12 months.   Tax years that remain open and subject to 
examination by the Internal Revenue Service are calendar years 2010 and forward.   
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Note 12---Commitments and Contingencies 

Leases
The Company leases office space, data processing and copier equipment and certain other equipment under operating leases expiring on various dates 
between 2014 and 2025.  Most of the leases contain renewal and purchase options based on prevailing fair market values.  Lease payments totaled $6.9 
million for the periods ended December 31, 2013 and 2012.

Aggregate future minimum rent payments required under non-cancelable operating leases in effect at December 31, 2013 are summarized as follows (in 
millions):

Period ending  
December 31

Minimum Lease Payments

2014 $          4.6

2015 3.3

2016 3.0

2017 2.9

2018 3.0

Thereafter 6.4

Total $        23.2

Financial Instruments with Off-Balance-Sheet Risk
The Company is a party to financial instruments with off-balance-sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet its financing needs.  These financial 
instruments include investment commitments related to separate account mortgage loans.  These instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit 
and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the balance sheet.

At December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, the Company had outstanding commitments to fund mortgage loans for Separate Account J and W1 of 
approximately $377.4 million and $246.4 million, respectively.  Union Labor Life, on behalf of Separate Account J, maintains a line of credit with Canadian 
Imperial Bank of Commerce in the amount of $100.0 million.  The line of credit is secured solely by the assets of Separate Account J.  The unused line of 
credit was $100.0 million at December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012. No draws were taken in 2013 or 2012.

Union Labor Life has a revolving credit facility agreement with the International Brotherhood of Teamsters Voluntary Employee Benefits Trust (“Borrower”) for 
a maximum amount of $2.0 million.  Union Labor Life renewed the credit facility through December 31, 2013. No draws were taken in 2013 or 2012.

FDIC Limit
The Company maintains its own funds in bank accounts with balances in excess of the FDIC insurance limit.

Audits, Investigations, Litigation and Unasserted Claims
Ullico and its subsidiaries are involved in legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of their business. In the opinion of management, such investiga-
tions, litigation, and unasserted claims will not have a material impact on the financial condition, results of operations, or cash flow of the Company.

The circumstances giving rise to the receivership proceedings for Ullico Casualty could result in the assertion of claims against the Company or past and 
present directors, officers and employees of the Company.  If such claims are asserted, the Company intends to dispute them vigorously and the outcome of 
any such claims cannot be determined.  
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Guarantees
The Company and, in certain instances, its subsidiary, Union Labor Life, are party to several guaranty agreements pursuant to which the performance of 
Ullico Casualty under certain reinsurance agreements is guaranteed.

Guarantees to State National Insurance Company

• Effective February 1, 2004, the Company guaranteed the performance and obligations of Ullico Casualty under its quota share reinsurance agreement 
dated February 1, 2004 with State National Insurance Company (“SNIC”) for Fiduciary and Union Liability policies.  The guaranty obligates the Company 
to hold SNIC harmless with respect to all liabilities of Ullico Casualty under the reinsurance agreement, including the obligation to make payments to 
SNIC for any payments that Ullico Casualty is unable to make.  Collateral is required under the reinsurance agreement at 150% of outstanding loss 
reserves and the collateral currently on deposit is provided in the table below.  The guaranty remains in force as long as Ullico Casualty has outstanding 
obligations under the reinsurance agreement. SNIC issued policies from 2004 to 2008 which were reinsured by Ullico Casualty.  

• Effective January 1, 2009, the Company and Union Labor Life guaranteed the performance and obligations of Ullico Casualty under its quota share rein-
surance agreement dated January 1, 2009 with SNIC for Workers’ Compensation policies.  The guaranty obligates the Company to hold SNIC harmless with 
respect to all liabilities of Ullico Casualty under the reinsurance agreement, including the obligation make payments to SNIC for any payments that Ullico 
Casualty is unable to make. Collateral is required under the reinsurance agreement at 150% of unearned premium and outstanding loss reserves, and 
the collateral currently on deposit is provided in the table below.  The guaranty remains in force as long as Ullico Casualty has outstanding obligations 
under the reinsurance agreement. SNIC issued policies from 2009 to 2012 which were reinsured by Ullico Casualty.

• Effective January 1, 2012, the Company and Union Labor Life guaranteed the performance and obligations of Ullico Casualty under its quota share 
reinsurance agreement dated January 1, 2012 with SNIC for Fiduciary and Union Liability policies.  The guaranty obligates the Company and Union Labor 
Life, jointly and severally; to hold SNIC harmless with respect to all liabilities of Ullico Casualty under the reinsurance agreement, including the obliga-
tion make payments to SNIC for any payments that Ullico Casualty is unable to make. Collateral is required under the reinsurance agreement at 200% 
of unearned premium and outstanding loss reserves. The guaranty remains in force as long as Ullico Casualty has outstanding obligations under the 
reinsurance agreement. SNIC issued policies from February 2012 to January 2013 which were reinsured by Ullico Casualty. 

To satisfy certain of the guarantee obligations described above, effective April 5, 2013, the Company and Union Labor Life entered into a security fund agree-
ment with SNIC pursuant to which $13.6 million was deposited into a security fund account for the benefit of SNIC to provide additional required collateral 
under the reinsurance agreements entered into by SNIC and Ullico Casualty dated February 1, 2004, January 1, 2009 and January 1, 2012, as described 
above. Union Labor Life deposited $13.6 million into the security fund account on April 9, 2013. 

The Company estimates that outstanding reserves were $28.8 million at December 31, 2013. Ullico Casualty funds on deposit in a security fund account 
were $56.9 million at December 31, 2013.  Union Labor Life funds on deposit in a security fund account at December 31, 2013 were $1.1 million resulting 
from a release of $12.5 million of the original $13.6 million deposit to Union Labor Life. The total funds held on deposit as collateral is $58.0 million as of 
December 31, 2013.

Guarantees to Other Parties

• Effective October 1, 2007, the Company guaranteed the perfomance and obligations of Ullico Casualty under its quota share reinsurance agreement 
dated October 1, 2007 with Hudson Insurance Company (“Hudson”) for Fiduciary and Union Liability policies.  The guaranty provides that the Company 
will guarantee the performance by Ullico Casualty of its liabilities under the reinsurance agreement, including all payment and collateral obligations. 
Collateral is required under the reinsurance agreement at 100% of unearned premium and outstanding loss reserves as determined by Hudson.  The 
guarantee provides that it will remain in force as long as Ullico Casualty has outstanding obligations under the reinsurance agreement. Hudson issued 
policies from 2007 to 2012 which were reinsured by Ullico Casualty and administered by Ullico Casualty Group. In July 2013, Hudson notified the Company 
that it was transferring the administration of Fiduciary Liability claims to another administrator. Based on publicly available information related to the 
Ullico Casualty/Hudson agreement, the Company believes that Hudson’s required collateral amount is $35.3 million. At December 31, 2013, $35.9 million 
was on deposit in a trust account for the benefit of Hudson.  

• Effective April 1, 2010, the Company guaranteed the performance and obligations of Ullico Casualty under its quota share reinsurance agreement dated 
April 1, 2010 with Companion Property and Casualty Insurance Company (“Companion”) for Workers’ Compensation policies, including the obligation to 
make any loss and loss adjustment expense payments that Ullico Casualty is unable to make.  Collateral is required under a related reinsurance trust 
agreement at 102% of outstanding loss reserves as determined by Companion.  The Company’s guarantee obligations do not extend to the collateral 
commitment in the reinsurance trust agreement.  The guarantee remains in force as long as Ullico Casualty has outstanding obligations under the rein-
surance agreement. Companion issued policies from 2010 to 2012 which were fully reinsured by Ullico Casualty. In March of 2013, Ullico Casualty had 
$18.8 million on deposit in the trust account for the benefit of Companion.  Subsequently, Companion withdrew all of the funds from the trust account. 
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Companion estimates that outstanding loss reserves were $22.9 million at December 31, 2013.  The collateral requirement is 102% of outstanding loss 
reserves or $23.3 million.  Companion has indicated they have collateral of $12.3 million to fund future claim payments. Except as noted above, the 
Company believes there is adequate collateral held by Companion to fund the reinsurance obligations. The Company established a contingency reserve of 
$6.0 million at December 31, 2012.  An additional reserve of $5.0 million was recorded in 2013.  See Note 15, Subsequent Event, for additional information 
regarding this guarantee.

• Effective November 15, 2012, the Company guaranteed the performance and obligations of Labor Captive under an amended and restated quota share 
reinsurance agreement dated November 15, 2012, with Alterra with respect to Union Liability, Fiduciary Liability, Governmental Liability, and Excess 
Fiduciary Liability policies issued on Alterra paper.  The guaranty provides that the Company will guarantee any payments arising out of or relating to the 
obligations and liabilities of Labor Captive arising from the reinsurance agreement that Labor Captive is unwilling or unable to make, including collateral 
obligations.  Collateral is required under the reinsurance agreement at 100% of: (a) reserves for unearned premiums, if any; (b) the unearned portions of 
any claims handling expenses; and (c) reserves for losses incurred but not reported and losses reported but unpaid. The guaranty also provides that: (1) 
the Company will contribute additional funds to Labor Captive if required for  Labor Captive to maintain adequate capital pursuant to the reinsurance 
agreement; (2) the Company will indemnify and hold Alterra harmless with respect to any and all liabilities or losses relating to the obligations of  Labor 
Captive arising from the reinsurance agreement; (3) the Company guarantees the performance and obligations of UCG, which is the managing general 
agent for the Alterra program, to indemnify and hold Alterra harmless as provided in its program administration agreement dated November 15, 2012, 
with Alterra and Labor Captive.  The Company’s guaranty obligations remain in full force and effect as long as Labor Captive has any obligations under 
the reinsurance agreement or UCG has any obligations to indemnify Alterra under the program administrator agreement. The collateral required by Alterra 
at December 31, 2013 was $12.1 million. At December 31, 2013, $14.1 million was on deposit in a trust account for the benefit of Alterra. 

The maximum potential amount of future payments under these guarantees is the obligations incurred by Ullico Casualty under the related reinsurance 
agreements.  The current estimate of this amount is the unearned premium and loss reserves reported by the ceding insurers as of December 31, 2013.   
Loss reserves are necessarily based upon assumptions and estimates and while management believes the amount is adequate, the ultimate liability may be 
in excess of or less than the amount estimated. The trust accounts described above are funded with investment grade bonds.  The Company believes there is 
adequate collateral in the trust accounts to fund the reinsurance agreement obligations. 

Note 13--Capital

At December 31, 2013, the insurance subsidiaries had statutory capital and surplus of $87.7 million, determined in accordance with statutory accounting 
practices utilized in filings with insurance regulatory authorities.  For the period ending December 31, 2013, the insurance subsidiaries had a combined 
statutory net loss of $11.4 million. Access to the capital and surplus within the insurance subsidiaries is restricted by state regulations.  The maximum 
dividend that Union Labor Life could pay to Ullico during 2014 on a statutory basis without approval from the Maryland Insurance Administration (“MIA”) is 
approximately $8.8 million.

Regulatory risk-based capital rules require a specified level of capital depending on the types and quality of investments held, the types of business written 
and the types of liabilities maintained. Depending on the ratio of an insurance company’s surplus to its risk-based capital, the insurance company could be 
subject to various regulatory actions ranging from increased scrutiny to conservatorship. The Company’s insurance subsidiary’s risk-based capital ratios at 
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 are significantly above the regulatory action levels.

The Company declared a $0.50 per share dividend on February 15, 2012 which was paid on May 18, 2012.  The amount of the dividend was $4.6 million. The 
dividend was recorded as a reduction to stockholders’ equity.
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Note 14—Discontinued Operations

As previously noted in Note 1, Organization and Basis of Presentation, the Company deconsolidated the assets and liabilities of Ullico Casualty, effective 
March 11, 2013.  As a result of the deconsolidation, discontinued operations results are reported as a separate line item on the consolidated statements of 
operations and consolidated statements of cash flows.

At December 31, 2012, Ullico Casualty reported total assets and liabilities of $530.1 million and $563.5 million, respectively. The following table shows the 
December 31, 2012 asset, liability and stockholders equity balances with the Ullico Casualty amounts excluded (in millions).

December 31, 2012 Ullico Casualty Continuing Operations

Balances Reported Balances Balances

Assets                   $3,523.1 ($530.1) $2,993.0

Liabilities 3,428.8 (563.5) 2,865.3

Total Stockholders’ Equity            94.3 33.4 127.7

Total Liabilities & Stockholders’ Equity                              $3,523.1 ($530.1) $2,993.0

Discontinued operations total revenue, income/(loss) before tax, income tax expense and net income/(loss) for the periods ended March 11, 2013 and Decem-
ber 31, 2012 are as follows (in millions):

March 11, 
2013

December 31, 
2012

Total revenue $          35.8 $          170.8

Income/(loss) before tax 15.4 (133.2)

Income tax expense (4.7) (0.6)

Net income/(loss) 10.7 (133.8)

Note 15—Subsequent Event

On February 28, 2014, the Company executed a Funding and Release Agreement (“the Agreement”) with Companion.  Under the terms of the Agreement, the 
Company deposited $11.0 million into a segregated custodial account maintained by Companion. In return, Companion released the Company from the guar-
anty obligations discussed in Note 12, Commitments and Contingencies. The Company will receive any remaining funds in the account once all outstanding 
obligations under the reinsurance agreement are satisfied. To satisfy the funding obligation under the Agreement, Union Labor Life requested approval from the 
MIA for an extraordinary dividend of $11.0 million. The dividend request was approved on February 26, 2014. The dividend was paid on February 28, 2014. 
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SEPARATE ACCOUNT J 

Performance results are not presented in compliance with the Global Investment Performance Standards.

FIRM DEFINITION

The Union Labor Life Insurance Company (“Union Labor Life”) is an insurance company licensed to conduct 
business in all 50 states.  Ullico Investment Company, Inc. (“UIC”) is registered as a broker-dealer in the United 
States with the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).  UIC is a member of the Financial Industry Regu-
latory Authority (“FINRA”) and of the Securities Investor Protection Corporation (“SIPC”) (http://www.finra.org/
index.htm, http://www.sipc.org/).  UIC markets and sells group annuity contracts issued by Union Labor Life to 
qualified institutional investors.

SEPARATE ACCOUNT J 

Separate Account J (“Fund”) is an insurance company pooled separate account (a commingled investment ac-
count) available through the purchase of a group annuity contract issued by Union Labor Life.  The Fund is a 
monthly valued, unitized account and is managed by the Real Estate Investment Group of Union Labor Life.  The 
Fund has not been registered with the SEC under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (“Securities Act”), 
any state securities commission or any other regulatory authority.  The Fund is being offered and sold in reliance 
on the exemption from the securities registration requirements of the Securities Act set forth in Section 3(a)(2) 
thereof.  The Fund will only be sold to US pension, retirement or profit-sharing plans that meet the qualifications 
of Section 401, 404(a)(2) or 414(d) of the United States Internal Revenue Code (IRC) or any corresponding provi-
sions of prior or subsequent federal laws.

The Fund portfolio consists primarily of construction and permanent mortgage loans issued for US commercial 
properties.  The Fund is benchmarked against the Barclays Capital Aggregate Index (“Index”).  The Index repre-
sents securities that are SEC-registered, taxable, and dollar denominated.  The Index covers the US investment 
grade fixed rate bond market, with index components for government and corporate securities, mortgage pass-
through securities and asset-backed securities.  In contrast, the Fund portfolio holdings are not publicly traded 
and the holdings, characteristics, and volatility of the Fund portfolio may differ significantly from the Index.  Thus, 
there are significant differences between the securities comprising the Index and those included in the Fund.  
Investors should bear these differences in mind when comparing the performance of the Fund to the performance 
of the Index.

CALCULATING RETURNS

The returns are actual returns of the Fund.  The Fund is valued monthly as of the close of business on the last 
business day of each month.  Monthly returns are calculated by comparing the closing value of the Fund at the 
end of a month with the closing value at the end of the previous month. Monthly returns are geometrically linked 
to produce partial, single or multi-year returns.  Annualized rates of return are computed by linking the annual 
rates of return and then appropriately adjusting this cumulative total to reflect the number of years in the annual-
ized calculation.

The returns include (1) realized and unrealized gains, (b) cash and cash equivalent returns, and (c) the reinvestment 
of dividends and other earnings.  Gross returns are presented before investment management fees but after all other 
expenses.  Net returns are presented after investment management fees and all other expenses.  Net returns are 
calculated by subtracting the highest investment management fee on a monthly basis from the gross return.

PERFORMANCE DISCLOSURES
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Past performance is not indicative of future results.  Results for individual investors and different time periods 
may vary.  Other performance calculations will produce different results. 

SEPARATE ACCOUNT J FEES AND EXPENSES

Effective April 1, 2013, the annual investment management fee payable by each Separate Account J investor with 
assets under management of less than $90 million is 0.75%; and for investors with invested assets of $90 million 
or greater, the annual investment management fee payable by each investor is 0.60% on all assets (both based on 
the Fund’s monthly closing value). Prior to April 1, 2013, the annual investment management fee payable by Sep-
arate Account J investors was 0.75% on the first $100 million invested and 0.60% on invested assets in excess of 
$100 million (both based on the Fund’s monthly closing value).  Union Labor Life also receives a Fund Servicing 
Fee.  As of January 1, 2008, the annual Fund Servicing Fee is 10 basis points of the Fund’s assets.  Generally, 
Union Labor Life (or the borrowers) will bear the operating expenses of the Fund that are payable to third parties.  
However, unanticipated and/or extraordinary third party expenses incurred by the Fund (as determined by Union 
Labor Life) may be charged to the Fund.  Unanticipated or extraordinary expenses include, but are not limited to, 
interest in the event the Fund’s line of credit is drawn down, expenses relating to loan foreclosures and litigation 
expenses.  Any expenses that are charged to the Fund will be reflected in the Fund’s unit value.

Gross returns do not include investment management fees, which would reduce such returns.  Gross returns 
do include the Fund Servicing Fee, which is deducted directly from the assets of the Fund.  Management fees 
are deducted monthly in arrears from each individual investor’s investment by redeeming investors’ units in the 
Fund, which produces a compounding effect on the total rate of return net of investment management fees.  The 
monthly fees are charged at a rate of 1/12 of 0.75% on invested assets of less than $90 million, and 0.60% on 
all invested assets of $90 million or greater and are based on the closing value of the investor’s account.

Union Labor Life reserves the right to charge more or less than these generally prevailing fees for investors invest-
ing a very small or very large amount in the Fund (subject to the maximum fee allowed by the General  Plan of 
Operations).  Union Labor Life may agree to aggregate the investments of affiliated Separate Account J investors 
for the purpose of applying the investment management fee schedule and the corresponding fee breakpoints.

FUND VALUATION

Consistent with industry practice, the valuation of mortgages held in the Fund portfolio is performed generally 
by determining the appropriate discount rate for each mortgage as of the valuation date and applying that rate to 
discount the future mortgage payments to present value.  The mortgage values determined by Union Labor Life 
could vary significantly from the prices at which the investment would sell because market prices of real estate 
investment can only be determined by negotiation between a willing buyer and seller.

INVESTMENT RISKS

Investments in illiquid real estate and commercial mortgage loans are subject to additional risks including the 
potential inability of an investor to redeem units.  The investment return and principal value of Separate Account 
J will fluctuate so that an investor’s units, when redeemed, may be worth more or less than original cost.   In ad-
dition, fluctuations in interest rates and market volatility may limit available financing for real estate investments 
held by Separate Account J, thereby adversely affecting the value of the underlying investments, the investment 
return and the liquidity of the investments.  The ability of borrowers to repay loans issued by Separate Account J 
will typically depend upon the successful construction or operation of the related real estate project and the avail-
ability of financing.  The repayment of loans issued for the construction of multifamily housing (i.e condominium 
loans) will generally depend on the borrower’s ability to sell the underlying housing units.  Potential investors in 
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Separate Account J should carefully read the Separate Account J Disclosure Memorandum for a description of the 
potential risks associated with investment in Separate Account J.

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

All assets and industry reports contained herein are unaudited.   The summation of dollar values and percentages 
reported may not equal the total values due to rounding discrepancies.  Unless otherwise noted, Union Labor 
Life is the source of all illustrations, charts, tables, graphs, performance data and characteristics.  Estimates are 
preliminary and unaudited.  All information is shown in US dollars.

Under no circumstances does the information contained within represent a recommendation to buy or sell secu-
rities.  Investors should carefully consider the investment objectives, risks, charges, and expenses of the Fund 
before investing.  

ALL MATERIALS PRESENTED ARE FOR INSTITUTIONAL CLIENTS ONLY AND ARE NOT INTENDED FOR DIS-
TRIBUTION TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC.

SEPARATE ACCOUNT W1 DISCLOSURE

Performance results are not presented in compliance with the Global Investment Performance Standards.

FIRM DEFINITION

The Union Labor Life Insurance Company (Union Labor Life) is an insurance company licensed to conduct busi-
ness in all 50 states.  Ullico Investment Company, Inc. (UIC) is registered as a broker-dealer in the United States 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC).  UIC is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory 
Authority (FINRA) and of the Securities Investor Protection Corporation (SIPC) (http://www.finra.org/index.htm, 
http://www.sipc.org/).  UIC markets and sells group annuity contracts issued by Union Labor Life to qualified 
institutional investors.

SEPARATE ACCOUNT W1

Separate Account W1 (the “Fund”) is an insurance company pooled separate account (a commingled investment 
account) available through the purchase of a group annuity contract issued by Union Labor Life.  The Fund is a 
monthly valued, unitized account and is managed by the Real Estate Investment Group of Union Labor Life.  The 
Fund has not been registered with the SEC under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (Securities Act), any 
state securities commission or any other regulatory authority.  The Fund is being offered and sold in reliance on 
the exemption from the securities registration requirements of the Securities Act set forth in Regulation D. The 
Fund will only be sold to “accredited investors” as that term is defined in Regulation D or any other qualified 
purchasers allowed under the group annuity contract.

Once the Fund reaches a critical size, the Fund portfolio will consist primarily of construction and permanent 
mortgage loans issued for US commercial properties.  The Fund is benchmarked against the Barclays Capital 
Aggregate Index (Index).  The Index represents securities that are SEC-registered, taxable, and dollar denomi-
nated.  The index covers the US investment grade fixed rate bond market, with index components for government 
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and corporate securities, mortgage pass-through securities and asset-backed securities.  In contrast, the Fund 
portfolio holdings are not publicly traded and the holdings, characteristics, and volatility of the Fund portfolio 
may differ significantly from the Index.  Thus, there are significant differences between the securities comprising 
the Index and those included in the Fund.  Investors should bear these differences in mind when comparing the 
performance of the Fund to the performance of the Index.

CALCULATING RETURNS

The returns are actual returns of the Fund.  The Fund is valued monthly as of the close of business on the last 
business day of each month.  Monthly returns are calculated by comparing the closing value of the Fund at the 
end of a month with the closing value at the end of the previous month. Monthly returns are geometrically linked 
to produce partial, single or multi-year returns.  Annualized rates of return are computed by linking the annual 
rates of return and then appropriately adjusting this cumulative total to reflect the number of years in the annual-
ized calculation.

The returns include (1) realized and unrealized gains, (b) cash and cash equivalent returns, and (c) the reinvest-
ment of dividends and other earnings.  Gross returns are presented before investment management fees but after 
all other expenses.  Net returns are presented after investment management fees and all other expenses.  Net 
returns are calculated by subtracting the highest investment management fee on a monthly basis from the gross 
return.

Past performance is not indicative of future results.  Results for individual accounts and different time periods 
may vary.  Other performance calculations will produce different results.

SEPARATE ACCOUNT W1 FEES AND EXPENSES

As of January 2008, the annual investment management fee payable by Separate Account W1 investors is 0.75% 
on the first $100 million invested and 0.60% on invested assets in excess of $100 million (both based on the 
Fund’s monthly closing value).  From January 2010 through July 2011, Union Labor Life temporarily waived the 
investment management fee payable by Separate Account W1 investors.  From August 2011 through December 
2011, the annual investment management fee temporarily paid by Separate Account W1 investors was 0.35% 
(based on the Fund’s monthly closing value). From January 2012 through December 2013, the annual investment 
management fee temporarily paid by Separate Account W1 investors was 0.55% on all invested assets (based on 
the Fund’s monthly closing value). Effective January 2014, the annual investment management fee temporarily 
payable by Separate Account W1 investors is 0.675% on the first $100 million invested and 0.60% on invested 
assets in excess of $100 million (both based on the Fund’s monthly closing values).  

Union Labor Life also receives a Fund Servicing Fee.  The Annual Fund Servicing Fee is 10 basis points of the 
Fund’s assets.  Generally, Union Labor Life (or the borrowers) will bear the operating expenses of the Fund that 
are payable to third parties.  However, unanticipated and/or extraordinary third party expenses incurred by the 
Fund, as determined by Union Labor Life, may be charged to the Fund.  Unanticipated or extraordinary expenses 
include, but are not limited to, interest in the event the Fund’s line of credit is drawn down, expenses relating 
to loan foreclosures and litigation expenses.  Any expenses that are charged to the Fund will be reflected in the 
Fund’s unit value.

Gross returns do not include investment management fees, which would reduce such returns.  Gross returns 
do include the Fund Servicing Fee, which is deducted directly from the assets of the Fund.  Management fees 
are deducted monthly in arrears from each individual investor’s investment by redeeming investors’ units in the 
Fund, which produces a compounding effect on the total rate of return net of investment management fees.  The 
monthly fees are charged at a rate of 1/12 of 0.75% on the first $100 million in assets and 0.60% on addi-
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tional assets and are based on the closing value of the investor’s account.   As noted above, from January 2010 
through July 2011, Union Labor Life temporarily waived the investment management fee.  From August 2011 to 
December 2011, the monthly fees were temporarily charged at a rate of 1/12 of 0.35% on all assets (based on 
closing value of the investor’s account), and from January 2012 through December 2013, the monthly fees were 
temporarily charged at a rate of 1/12 of 0.55% on all assets (based on closing value of the investor’s account). 
Effective January 2014, the monthly fees are temporarily charged at a rate of 1/12 of 0.675% on all assets and 
are based on the closing value of the investor’s account.

Union Labor Life reserves the right to charge more or less than these generally prevailing fees for investors invest-
ing a very small or very large amount in the Fund (subject to the maximum fee allowed by the General  Plan of 
Operations).  Union Labor Life may agree to aggregate the investments of affiliated Separate Account W1 inves-
tors for the purpose of applying the investment management fee schedule and the corresponding fee breakpoints. 

FUND VALUATION

Consistent with industry practice, the valuation of mortgages held in the Fund portfolio is performed generally 
by determining the appropriate discount rate for each mortgage as of the valuation date and applying that rate to 
discount the future mortgage payments to present value.  The mortgage values determined by Union Labor Life 
could vary significantly from the prices at which the investment would sell because market prices of real estate 
investments can only be determined by negotiation between a willing buyer and seller.

INVESTMENT RISKS

Investments in illiquid real estate and commercial mortgage loans are subject to additional risks including the 
potential inability of an investor to redeem units.  The investment return and principal value of the Fund will 
fluctuate so that an investor’s units, when redeemed, may be worth more or less than original cost.   In addition, 
fluctuations in interest rates and market volatility may limit available financing for real estate investments held 
by the Fund, thereby adversely affecting the value of the underlying investments, the investment return and the 
liquidity of the investments.  The ability of borrowers to repay loans issued by the Fund will typically depend 
upon the successful construction or operation of the related real estate project and the availability of financing.  
The repayment of loans issued for the construction of multifamily housing (i.e. condominium loans) will generally 
depend on the borrower’s ability to sell the underlying housing units.  Potential investors in the Fund should care-
fully read the Separate Account W1 Disclosure Memorandum for a description of the potential risks associated 
with investment in the Fund.

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURES

All assets and industry reports contained herein are unaudited.   The summation of dollar values and percentages 
reported may not equal the total values due to rounding discrepancies.  Unless otherwise noted, Union Labor 
Life is the source of all illustrations, charts, tables, graphs, performance data and characteristics.  Estimates are 
preliminary and unaudited.  All information is shown in US dollars.

Under no circumstances does the information contained within represent a recommendation to buy or sell securi-
ties.  Investors should not rely on prior performance data as a reliable indication of future performance.

ALL MATERIALS PRESENTED ARE FOR INSTITUTIONAL CLIENTS ONLY AND ARE NOT INTENDED FOR DIS-
TRIBUTION TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC.
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ULLICO INFRASTRUCTURE FUND, L.P. PERFORMANCE CALCULATION AND  
PRESENTATION DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

Performance results are not calculated or presented in compliance with the Global Investment Performance 
Standards.

FIRM DEFINITION

Ullico Investment Company, Inc. (“UIC”) is registered as a broker-dealer in the United States with the U.S. 
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”).  UIC is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority 
(“FINRA”) and of the Securities Investor Protection Corporation (“SIPC”) (http://www.finra.org/indexhtm, http://
www.sipc.org/) and is responsible for marketing and selling the Ullico Infrastructure Fund, L.P. (“UIF” or “the 
Fund”).  Ullico Investment Advisors, Inc. (“UIA”) is a registered investment adviser with the SEC under the In-
vestment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended (“Act”).  UIA is the investment adviser to UIF.  

INFRASTRUCTURE INVESTMENTS

The Fund is a Delaware limited partnership designed to permit qualified tax exempt purchasers to invest in core 
infrastructure investments.  The Fund and the units issued will not be registered under the Securities Act of 
1933, as amended, the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, or under state securities laws.  

The Fund’s portfolio will consist of investments in infrastructure businesses that provide essential services to 
communities, governments and businesses.  The portfolio investments may be made in the utility, transporta-
tion, social and specialist sectors.  A benchmark has not been included since there is no industry standard for 
infrastructure investments. 

Basis for Infrastructure Investment Returns

Performance since November 28, 2012 reflects that of the Ullico Infrastructure Fund, L.P.  

CALCULATING RETURNS

UIF is valued quarterly (or at other times at the discretion of the General Partner) as of the close of business on 
the last business day of each calendar quarter.  Quarterly returns are calculated by comparing the closing value 
of UIF at the end of a quarter with the closing value at the end of the previous quarter.  Quarterly returns are geo-
metrically linked to produce partial, single or multi-year period returns.  Annualized rates of return are computed 
by linking the annual rates of return and then appropriately adjusting this cumulative total to reflect the number 
of years in the annualizing calculation.

Returns include (a) realized and unrealized gains, (b) cash and cash equivalent returns, and (c) the reinvestment 
of dividends and other earnings.  Returns are calculated on a quarterly basis and are presented in U.S. dollars. 
Gross returns are presented before investment management fees but are net of custodial, brokerage and execution 
costs, third party Fund expenses, and investment sourcing and acquisition expenses.  Net returns are presented 
after the deduction investment management fees. Returns for the Fund are presented after payment of taxes gen-
erated by Unrelated Business Taxable Income but without provision for any other federal or state taxes.

FEES

Gross returns do not give effect to investment management fees, which would reduce such returns.  Management 
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fees are deducted quarterly through redemption of limited partnership units, which produces a compounding ef-
fect on the total rate of return net of investment management fees.  As an example, the effect of investment man-
agement fees on the total value of a client’s portfolio assuming (a) $1,000,000 investment (b) portfolio return 
of 8% a year, and (c) 1.00% annual investment advisory fee would be $10,416 in the first year, and cumulative 
effect of $59,816 over five years and $143,430 over 10 years. The annual investment management fee for the 
UIF is 1.25% until November 29, 2014, at which time the annual investment management fee will increase to 
1.75%.

Bank of New York Mellon serves as custodian for the Fund and the Fund pays a monthly fee to Bank of New York 
Mellon for custodial services and expenses incurred.  In addition, the Fund pays other third party fund related 
expenses, as well as expenses related to sourcing and acquisition of investments.  Prospective investors should 
review the Confidential Private Placement Memorandum and the Limited Partnership Agreement for a complete 
disclosure of all fees and expenses.

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE

Although the information in this document has been obtained from, and is based upon, sources that UIA believes 
to be reliable, we do not guarantee their accuracy, and any such information may be incomplete or inaccurate.  All 
opinions included in this report constitute UIA’s judgment as of the date of this report and are subject to change 
without notice. The asset and industry reports contained herein are unaudited.  The summation of dollar values 
and percentages reported may not equal the total values due to rounding discrepancies.  Portfolio characteristics 
are derived using current data available from independent research resources that are believed to be accurate.  
Unless otherwise noted, UIA is the source of all illustrations, charts, tables, graphs, performance data and char-
acteristics.

You are being provided this information and/or material for the sole purpose of helping you determine whether you 
wish to give additional consideration to a potential investment in the Fund.  The information does not constitute 
an offer to sell or a solicitation of an offer to buy interests in the Fund.  Any such offer or solicitation may be made 
only by delivery to you of a Confidential Private Placement Memorandum relating to the Fund, and you should not 
make a decision to investment in the Fund prior to reviewing that document.

Statements of the investment objectives of the Fund are statements of objectives only.  They are not projections of 
expected performance or guarantees of investment results.  Actual performance and results may vary substantially 
from the stated objectives.

Past performance is not indicative of future results.  Results for individual investors and for different time periods 
may vary.  Other performance calculations will produce different results.  An investment in UIF involves significant 
risk, including the potential risk of loss of a substantial portion (or all) of the amount invested.  The Confidential 
Private Placement Memorandum relating to the Fund further describes the risks associated with investment in 
UIF.

This document and the information provided are confidential.  In the absence of express prior written consent of 
UIC, you may not copy, use or transmit this material or any data or information contained herein, in whole or in 
part, or permit such action by others for any purpose (except that you may provide copies of this material or por-
tions hereof to your legal, tax, financial or other advisers).  You must return this material to UIC upon its request.

Investment in infrastructure is speculative, not suitable for all investors, and should be undertaken only by expe-
rienced and sophisticated investors who are willing to bear the high risks of such an investment, which include, 
but are not limited to, lack of liquidity, restrictions on transferring ownership to the Fund, absence of information 
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regarding valuation and pricing, and high fees and expenses.

All materials presented are for institutional client use only and are not intended for distribution to the public.

ULLICO DIVERSIFIED INTERNATIONAL EQUITY FUND, L.P. PERFORMANCE CALCULATION AND  
PRESENTATION DISCLOSURE STATEMENT

Performance results are not calculated or presented in compliance with the Global Investment Performance 
Standards. 

FIRM DEFINITION 

Ullico Investment Company (“UIC”) is registered as a broker dealer with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Com-
mission (“SEC”).  UIC is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”) and of the Securities 
Investor Protection Corporation (“SIPC”) (http://www.finra.org/indexhtm, http://www.sipc.org/) and is responsible 
for marketing and selling the Ullico Diversified International Equity Fund, L.P. (“Ullico DIEF”).  Ullico Investment 
Advisors, Inc. (“UIA”) is a registered investment adviser with the SEC under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, 
as amended (“Act”) and is the investment adviser to Ullico DIEF.  UIA has sub-advisory agreements with firms 
registered under the Act, and under these agreements, the sub-advisers have discretion to buy and sell securities 
for Ullico DIEF.  

INTERNATIONAL EQUITY

Ullico DIEF is a tax-exempt Delaware limited partnership designed to permit qualified purchasers to invest in 
international equities.  Ullico DIEF and the units issued will not be registered under the Securities Act of 1933, 
as amended, the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, or under state securities laws.  UIA has currently 
retained ClearBridge Investments, LLC (formerly Global Currents Investment Management, LLC) (“ClearBridge”), 
Hansberger Global Investors, Inc. (“Hansberger”), Wellington Management Company, LLP (“Wellington”), and Lee 
Munder Capital Group (“Lee Munder”) as  sub-advisers with respect to Ullico DIEF.  ClearBridge and Hansberger 
have served as sub-advisers since the inception of Ullico DIEF on October 1, 2006.  Lee Munder was added as 
a sub-adviser in November 2008.  Wellington has served as a sub-adviser since February 1, 2013.  Wellington 
replaced GlobeFlex Capital, L.P., who served as a sub-adviser from January 1, 2005 through January 31, 2013.

The portfolio consists of equity investments in non-U.S. companies and is benchmarked against the Morgan 
Stanley Capital International (“MSCI”) Europe, Australasia, Far East (“EAFE”) Index. The MSCI EAFE Index is 
an unmanaged index of over 900 companies and is a generally accepted benchmark for major overseas markets. 
The MSCI EAFE Index weightings represent the relative capitalization of the major overseas markets included in 
the Index on a U.S. dollar adjusted basis. Index returns reflect the reinvestment of income, dividends and capital 
gains, if any, but do not reflect fees, brokerage commissions or other expenses of investing.  Investors may not 
make direct investments into any index.  Ullico DIEF differs from the MSCI EAFE Index due to a number of rea-
sons, including a permitted investment of up to 20% of the fund in emerging markets and an allocation of 20% 
of the fund to small cap stocks.  Investors should bear these differences in mind when comparing the performance 
of Ullico DIEF to the performance of the Index.  For a complete description of the investment guidelines, investors 
should review the Confidential Private Placement Memorandum.
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BASIS FOR INTERNATIONAL EQUITY RETURNS 

Ullico DIEF was initially funded on October 1, 2006.  Performance returns reflect the returns of Ullico DIEF.  

CALCULATING RETURNS

As of October 15, 2013, Ullico DIEF is valued daily as of the close of business on each business day.  Prior to 
October 15, 2013, Ullico DIEF was valued monthly as of the close of business on the last business day of each 
month.  Since October 15, 2013, daily returns are calculated by comparing the closing value of Ullico DIEF at 
the end of a business day to the closing value at the end of the previous day. Prior to October 15, 2013, monthly 
returns were calculated by comparing the closing value of Ullico DIEF at the end of a month with the closing 
value at the end of the previous month.   Daily returns are geometrically linked with daily returns since October 
15, 2013 and with monthly returns prior to October 15, 2013 to produce partial, single or multi-year returns.  
Annualized rates of return are computed by linking the annual rates of return and then appropriately adjusting 
this cumulative total to reflect the number of years in the annualizing calculation.

Returns include (a) realized and unrealized gains, (b) cash and cash equivalent returns, and (c) the reinvestment 
of dividends and other earnings.  Returns are calculated on a monthly basis and are presented in U.S. dollars. 
Trade date valuation is used for all periods. Gross returns are presented before investment management fees but 
are net of custodial, brokerage and execution costs.  Net returns are presented after the deduction of all fees, 
including investment management fees. Returns are presented without provision for federal or state taxes.

Past performance is not indicative of future results.  Results for individual accounts and for different time periods 
may vary.  Other performance calculations will produce different results. 

FEES AND EXPENSES

Gross returns do not give effect to investment management fees, which would reduce such returns.  Management 
fees are deducted monthly, which produces a compounding effect on the total rate of return net of investment 
management fees.  As an example, the effect of investment management fees on the total value of a client’s 
portfolio assuming (a) $1,000,000 investment (b) portfolio return of 8% a year, and (c) 1.00% annual investment 
advisory fee would be $10,416 in the first year, and cumulative effect of $59,816 over five years and $143,430 
over 10 years. The annual investment management fee for the Ullico DIEF is 0.80% on the first $35 million in 
assets under management, 0.70% on the next $15 million and .60% on assets greater than $50 million.  

Bank of New York Mellon (“BNY Mellon”) serves as custodian for Ullico DIEF and Ullico DIEF pays a monthly fee 
to BNY Mellon for custodial services and expenses incurred.  In addition, Ullico DIEF may pay other fund related 
expenses.  Prospective investors should review the Private Placement Memorandum for a complete disclosure of 
all fees and expenses. 

INVESTMENT RISKS

Investments in foreign securities are subject to additional risks, including currency fluctuation, valuation and 
political risks, and the portfolio is expected to be more volatile than that of a U.S. only portfolio.  In addition, 
Ullico DIEF invests in small companies and companies located in emerging markets, which may be more volatile 
and less liquid than large company stocks and developed markets. The investment return and principal value of 
Ullico DIEF will fluctuate so that an investor’s units, when redeemed, may be worth more or less than original 
cost.  Ullico DIEF is structured as a limited partnership.  Limited partnership interests may be subject to liquidity 
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restrictions and mandatory or substantial redemptions.  Prospective investors should carefully read the Private 
Placement Memorandum for a complete list of all potential risks associated with investment in Ullico DIEF.  

ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE

Although the information in this document has been obtained from, and is based upon, sources that UIA believes 
to be reliable, we do not guarantee their accuracy, and any such information may be incomplete or inaccurate.  
Any opinions included in this report constitute UIA’s judgment as of the date of this report and are subject to 
change without notice.  All asset and industry reports contained herein are unaudited.  The summation of dollar 
values and percentages reported may not equal the total values due to rounding discrepancies.

Portfolio characteristics are derived using current data available from independent research resources that are 
believed to be accurate.  Securities, countries and sectors mentioned are to illustrate securities, countries and 
sectors in which the portfolio may invest.  Portfolio holdings are subject to change daily.  Unless otherwise noted, 
UIA or one of the sub-advisors is the source of all illustrations, charts, tables, graphs, performance data and 
characteristics. 

Under no circumstances does the information contained within represent a recommendation to buy or sell securi-
ties.  Investors should carefully consider the investment objectives, risks, charges and expenses of Ullico DIEF 
before investing.

Investors should not relay on prior performance data as a reliable indication of future performance.

ALL MATERIALS PRESENTED ARE FOR INSTITUTIONAL CLIENTS ONLY AND ARE NOT INTENDED FOR DIS-
TRIBUTION TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC.

ULLICO INTERNATIONAL SMALL CAP FUND, L.P. PERFORMANCE CALCULATION AND PRESENTATION DIS-
CLOSURE STATEMENT

Performance results are not calculated or presented in compliance with the Global Investment Performance 
Standards. 

FIRM DEFINITION 

Ullico Investment Company (“UIC”) is registered as a broker dealer with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Com-
mission (“SEC”).  UIC is a member of the Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (“FINRA”) and of the Securities 
Investor Protection Corporation (“SIPC”) (http://www.finra.org/indexhtm, http://www.sipc.org/) and is responsible 
for marketing and selling the Ullico International Small Cap Fund, L.P. (“Ullico ISCF” or “Fund”).  Ullico Invest-
ment Advisors, Inc. (“UIA”) is a registered investment adviser with the SEC under the Investment Advisers Act 
of 1940, as amended (“Act”) and is the investment adviser to Ullico ISCF.  UIA has sub-advisory agreements 
with firms registered under the Act, and under these agreements, the sub-advisers have discretion to buy and sell 
securities for Ullico ISCF.  
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INTERNATIONAL SMALL CAP EQUITY

Ullico ISCF is a tax-exempt Delaware limited partnership designed to permit qualified purchasers to invest in in-
ternational equities.  Ullico ISCF and the units issued will not be registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as 
amended, the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended, or under state securities laws.  UIA has currently 
retained Wellington Management Company, LLP (“Wellington”) and Lee Munder Capital Group (“Lee Munder”) 
as sub-advisers with respect to Ullico ISCF.  Lee Munder has served as a sub-adviser since the inception of the 
international small cap strategy on October 1, 2012.  Wellington has served as a sub-adviser since March 1, 
2013.  Wellington replaced GlobeFlex Capital, L.P., who served as a sub-adviser from October 1, 2012 through 
February 28, 2013.

The portfolio consists of equity investments in non-U.S. small companies (defined for this purpose to mean com-
panies with market capitalizations of less than $6 billion) and is benchmarked against the Morgan Stanley Capi-
tal International (“MSCI”) Europe, Australasia, Far East (“EAFE”) Small Cap Index. The MSCI EAFE Small Cap 
Index is an unmanaged equity index which captures small cap representation across developed market countries 
around the world, excluding the US and Canada. Index returns reflect the reinvestment of income, dividends and 
capital gains, if any, but do not reflect fees, brokerage commissions or other expenses of investing.  Investors may 
not make direct investments into any index.  Ullico ISCF differs from the MSCI EAFE Index due to a number of 
reasons, including a permitted investment of up to 20% of the fund in emerging markets.  Investors should bear 
these differences in mind when comparing the performance of Ullico ISCF to the performance of the Index.  For 
a complete description of the investment guidelines, investors should review the Confidential Private Placement 
Memorandum.

BASIS FOR INTERNATIONAL EQUITY RETURNS 

Prior to October 1, 2012, the performance returns reflect model-simulated backtested returns (as described be-
low).  Performance since October 1, 2012 reflects that of Ullico ISCF.  

All performance returns presented for periods prior to October 1, 2012 are hypothetical, do not reflect actual 
management of client assets and should not be interpreted as an indication of actual performance.  No client 
account actually had the performance quoted in this document for time periods prior to October 1, 2012.  Per-
formance figures prior to October 1, 2012 were achieved through the retroactive application of a model portfolio 
designed with the benefit hindsight, a process known as “backtesting”.  As a result, UIA had the ability (with 
the benefit of hindsight) to change the model portfolio to obtain favorable performance results.  The backtested 
performance returns are presented for informational purposes only and are designed to indicate the performance 
that would have been achieved had this model portfolio been in existence as of October 1, 2006, which is the 
first date that all sub-advisers had actively managed portfolios.  The backtested model portfolio returns were cal-
culated using a hypothetical portfolio balance allocated as follows:  50% to Lee Munder and 50% to Wellington 
(the “target allocation”).  Each sub-adviser’s actual monthly composite return was applied to this hypothetical 
portfolio allocation.  If a sub-adviser’s hypothetical portfolio allocation exceeded +/-5% of the target allocation, 
the portfolio would be rebalanced to the target allocation.  However, during the backtested time period of October 
1, 2006 through September 30, 2012, no sub-adviser’s hypothetical portfolio allocation exceeded the target al-
location and therefore, no rebalancing was required.  To calculate the backtested model portfolio monthly return, 
the ending market values of each sub-adviser’s allocation were combined into a single market value.  The monthly 
return was calculated by comparing the beginning and ending market value.  The monthly market values were geo-
metrically linked to calculate annual returns.  Compound annualized rates of return were computed by linking the 
annual rates of return and then appropriately adjusting this cumulative total to reflect the number of years in the 
annualizing calculation.  The backtested model portfolio returns do not include any transaction costs associated 
with reallocating the portfolio between the sub-advisers, which was not required as noted above. 
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CALCULATING RETURNS

As of October 15, 2013, Ullico ISCF is valued daily as of the close of business on each business day.  Prior to 
October 15, 2013, Ullico ISCF was valued monthly as of the close of business on the last business day of each 
month.  Since October 15, 2013, daily returns are calculated by comparing the closing value of Ullico ISCF at 
the end of a business day to the closing value at the end of the previous day. Prior to October 15, 2013, monthly 
returns were calculated by comparing the closing value of Ullico ISCF at the end of a month with the closing 
value at the end of the previous month.   Daily returns are geometrically linked with daily returns since October 
15, 2013 and with monthly returns prior to October 15, 2013 to produce partial, single or multi-year returns.  
Annualized rates of return are computed by linking the annual rates of return and then appropriately adjusting 
this cumulative total to reflect the number of years in the annualizing calculation.

Returns include (a) realized and unrealized gains, (b) cash and cash equivalent returns, and (c) the reinvestment 
of dividends and other earnings.  Returns are calculated on a monthly basis and are presented in U.S. dollars. 
Trade date valuation is used for all periods. Gross returns are presented before investment management fees but 
are net of custodial, brokerage and execution costs.  Net returns are presented after the deduction of all fees, 
including investment management fees. Returns are presented without provision for federal or state taxes.

Past performance is not indicative of future results.  Results for individual accounts and for different time periods 
may vary.  Other performance calculations will produce different results. 

FEES AND EXPENSES

Gross returns do not give effect to investment management fees, which would reduce such returns.  Management 
fees are deducted monthly, which produces a compounding effect on the total rate of return net of investment man-
agement fees.  As an example, the effect of investment management fees on the total value of a client’s portfolio 
assuming (a) $1,000,000 investment (b) portfolio return of 8% a year, and (c) 1.00% annual investment advisory 
fee would be $10,416 in the first year, and cumulative effect of $59,816 over five years and $143,430 over 10 
years. The annual investment management fee for the Ullico ISCF is 1.00% on all assets under management.  

Bank of New York Mellon (“BNY Mellon”) serves as custodian for Ullico ISCF and Ullico ISCF pays a monthly fee 
to BNY Mellon for custodial services and expenses incurred.  In addition, Ullico ISCF may pay other fund related 
expenses.  Prospective investors should review the Private Placement Memorandum for a complete disclosure of 
all fees and expenses. 

INVESTMENT RISKS

Investments in foreign securities are subject to additional risks, including currency fluctuation, valuation and 
political risks, and the portfolio is expected to be more volatile than that of a U.S. only portfolio.  In addition, 
Ullico ISCF invests in small companies and companies located in emerging markets, which may be more volatile 
and less liquid than large company stocks and developed markets. The investment return and principal value of 
Ullico ISCF will fluctuate so that an investor’s units, when redeemed, may be worth more or less than original 
cost.  Ullico ISCF is structured as a limited partnership.  Limited partnership interests may be subject to liquidity 
restrictions and mandatory or substantial redemptions.  Prospective investors should carefully read the Private 
Placement Memorandum for a complete list of all potential risks associated with investment in Ullico ISCF.  
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ADDITIONAL DISCLOSURE

Although the information in this document has been obtained from, and is based upon, sources that UIA believes 
to be reliable, we do not guarantee their accuracy, and any such information may be incomplete or inaccurate.  
Any opinions included in this report constitute UIA’s judgment as of the date of this report and are subject to 
change without notice.  All asset and industry reports contained herein are unaudited.  The summation of dollar 
values and percentages reported may not equal the total values due to rounding discrepancies.

Portfolio characteristics are derived using current data available from independent research resources that are 
believed to be accurate.  Securities, countries and sectors mentioned are to illustrate securities, countries and 
sectors in which the portfolio may invest.  Portfolio holdings are subject to change daily.  Unless otherwise noted, 
UIA or one of the sub-advisors is the source of all illustrations, charts, tables, graphs, performance data and 
characteristics. 

Under no circumstances does the information contained within represent a recommendation to buy or sell securi-
ties.  Investors should carefully consider the investment objectives, risks, charges and expenses of Ullico ISCF 
before investing.

Investors should not relay on prior performance data as a reliable indication of future performance.

ALL MATERIALS PRESENTED ARE FOR INSTITUTIONAL CLIENTS ONLY AND ARE NOT INTENDED FOR DIS-
TRIBUTION TO THE GENERAL PUBLIC.
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